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Cover: Mustang Marine’s pilot boat Collingwood works 
the Port of Tyne in the UK, using twin 525-horsepower 
(392-kW) Scania DI16 engines driving fixed-pitch  
propellers through Twin Disc MGX-5114 SC QuickShift® 
transmissions and EC300 electronic controls. 

Cover, inset: Martin-Tec’s 6x6 ARFF (airport rescue and 
fire fighting) vehicle relies on a Twin Disc TD61-1179 
transmission system with TDEC electronic controls, 
torque converter and PTO.

twin disc, incorporated

is an international manufacturer and 

distributor of heavy-duty off-highway 

power transmission equipment. 

Company engineers work hand-in-

hand with customers and engine 

manufacturers to design products 

with characteristics unique to their 

specific applications. Twin Disc 

supplies the commercial, pleasure 

craft and military segments of the 

marine market with transmissions, 

surface and waterjet drives, 

electronic controls, propellers and 

boat management systems. Its off-

highway transmission products 

are used in agricultural, all-terrain 

specialty vehicle and military 

applications. Twin Disc also sells 

industrial products such as power 

take-offs, mechanical, hydraulic, 

and modulating clutches and 

control systems to the agricultural, 

environmental and energy and 

natural resources markets. The 

Corporation, which is a multinational 

organization headquartered in Racine, 

Wisconsin, currently has a diverse 

shareholder base with approximately 

one-third of the outstanding shares 

held by management, active and 

retired employees and other long- 

term investors.

financial highlights

 2008	 2007 2006	
Net Sales $331,694	 $317,200 $243,287

Net Earnings 24,252	 21,852 14,453

Basic Earnings Per Share 2.15	 1.88 1.26

Diluted Earnings Per Share 2.13	 1.84 1.22

Dividends Per Share 0.265	 0.205 0.1825 

Average Shares Outstanding For The Year 11,278,885	 11,622,620 11,533,276

Diluted Shares Outstanding For The Year 11,411,927	 11,880,432 11,881,208
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  S  ingapore
Mill Log Equipment Co., Inc.
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2008 1st qtr 2nd qtr 3rd qtr 4th qtr Year

Net Sales $73,613 $81,894 $85,838 $90,349 $331,694

Gross Profit 23,851 25,346 26,627 29,044 104,868

Net Earnings 5,106 4,209 7,929 7,008 24,252

Basic Earnings Per Share 0.4400 0.3700 0.7100 0.6300 2.1500

Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.4400 0.3700 0.7000 0.6200 2.1300

Dividends Per Share 0.0550 0.0700 0.0700 0.0700 0.2650

Stock Price Range (High – Low) 41.99 – 23.51 37.47 – 25.51 36.35 – 12.07 23.34 – 13.38 41.99 – 12.07

      

2007 
Net Sales $65,774 $74,239 $86,405 $90,782 $317,200

Gross Profit 20,313 24,389 28,185 30,022 102,909

Net Earnings 3,672 5,670 7,509 5,001 21,852

Basic Earnings Per Share 0.3200 0.4900 0.6500 0.4200 1.8800

Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.3100 0.4800 0.6400 0.4100 1.8400

Dividends Per Share 0.0475 0.0475 0.0550 0.0550 0.2050

Stock Price Range (High – Low) 19.00 – 15.15 18.28 – 15.51 23.49 – 16.25 38.00 – 21.10 38.00 – 15.15

In thousands of dollars except per share and stock price range statistics.
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sales and earnings by quarter

Pilot boat La Couronnée IV, powered by two 
CAT3508B engines working through Twin Disc 
MGX-6650 SC QuickShift® transmissions with 
EC300 controls, serves as a pilot boat station 
outside the Atlantic port of Saint-Nazaire, France.
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Fiscal 2008 was another remarkable year. Sales and 

earnings, propelled by our market and geographic 

diversity, grew for the fifth consecutive year. Fiscal 

2008 was also the fifth year in a row that we were able 

to generate earnings in excess of our cost of capital.

F i n a n c i a l  R e s u lt s  

For fiscal 2008, net sales were $331.7 

million, compared to $317.2 million last year. 

Net income was $24.3 million, or $2.13 per 

diluted share, compared to $21.9 million, or 

$1.84 per diluted share a year ago.

Reflecting the strength of our market 

diversity, sales of our products used in 

commercial vessels and mega yachts in 

the marine market and airport rescue and 

fire fighting and military vehicles in the 

land-based transmissions markets offset 

softness in demand for our large oil and gas 

transmissions and industrial products. 

to our shareholders

As an indication of the breadth of our 

geographic diversity, for the first time in 

the Company’s history, sales generated 

in overseas markets exceeded U.S. sales. 

Particular strength was experienced in 

our Italian mega yacht and our Asian 

commercial marine markets. Further, 

more than half of our employees are now 

located in countries outside the U.S. For a 

Midwestern-based company, we are truly 

global in our reach.

Despite the challenges of inflating raw 

material prices, softness in some of our 

markets and shouldering the expense  

of launching a new ERP system, we, 

nevertheless, were able to maintain  

margins and achieve earnings growth as 

well. Cost reduction programs, expanded 

outsourcing, manufacturing efficiencies and 

selective price increases contributed to the 

improved profitability.  

The continued weakening of the U.S. Dollar 

versus the Euro impacted us in two ways. 

First, it put pressure on the U.S. sales of 

products manufactured at our Belgian 

operation, while at the same time enhancing 

the global competitiveness of the Company’s 

domestically produced products. Second, it 

had the favorable effect of foreign currency 

translation on our financial statements.
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Above right: Safehaven Marine’s new pilot vessel for  
the Port of St. Malo, France, is powered by twin 500- 
horsepower (373-kW) Iveco engines driving through 
Twin Disc MGX-5114 QuickShift® transmissions to  
provide a maximum speed of 24 knots. 
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Our financial condition remains strong 

and our businesses are generating strong 

operating cash flows. The Company 

generated cash from operating activities 

of $19.7 million for fiscal 2008, compared 

to $17.5 million for fiscal 2007. Total debt 

was $50.0 million at fiscal 2008 year-end, 

compared to $43.9 million at June 30, 2007, 

and $57.4 million at March 28, 2008. Total 

debt to total capitalization now stands at 

27.8 percent, compared to 27.6 percent at 

June 30, 2007. At the end of fiscal 2008, 

shareholders’ equity increased to $129.6 

million from $115.4 million at June 30, 2007.

In fiscal 2008, capital expenditures totaled 

$15.0 million, compared to $15.7 million last 

year. Since fiscal 2005 we have invested over 

$50.0 million to upgrade and expand our 

facilities. We are continuing to invest in our 

manufacturing core competencies as well as 

systems that will enhance our productivity 

for the future.

During the year, the Board of Directors 

increased the quarterly dividend payment 

27.3 percent to $0.070 per common share 

from $0.055 per common share. This is the 

third consecutive year the cash dividend has 

been increased.
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The AZ-500B is a high-powered reclamation/recycling attachment, 
which effectively harnesses the power and productivity of larger 
recyclers, asphalt grinders and milling machines. It utilizes a Twin Disc 
model SP211 PTO attached to a John Deere turbodiesel engine.
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Below: The UK Ministry of Defense recently overhauled this 
1999 model Alvis UniPower rapid intervention crash fire 
tender deployed at Mansten Airport (now Kent International) 
in Kent, England, to incorporate the new Twin Disc TD61-1179 
transmission system and TDEC-400 electronic controls.

Our marine and propulsion system products 

had another very good year in fiscal 

2008. Global work boat and mega yacht 

production continued to grow. Twin Disc’s 

line of transmissions, propulsion and boat 

management system products were shipped 

around the world to support the growing 

trend of the past few years. 

In the work boat market, the production of 

offshore vessels and crew and supply boats 

has become even more global, and our 

worldwide operations have supported this 

growth, whether it is on the U.S. Gulf Coast 

or in Southeast Asia. 

In the pleasure craft market, 2008 was 

another year of growth for the global mega 

yacht segment. Twin Disc participated in this 

growth by supplying its patented QuickShift® 

transmissions, Arneson Surface Drives, 

Rolla propellers and BCS boat management 

systems to builders around the world. 

By focusing on our strategy of providing 

package solutions of highly engineered, 

high-quality products, we continue to gain 

acceptance and work closely with the world’s 

premier boat builders.

Our land-based transmission and industrial 

product markets had mixed results in 

fiscal 2008. Shipments of the 8500 Series 

transmission to pressure pumping rigs in 

North American oil fields were down from 

their 2007 historical highs. However, we 

did see growing acceptance of this product 

in oil and gas markets in Russia and China. 

We continued seeing growth in our 

airport rescue and fire fighting business, 

due to increased penetration and global 

airport expansion. And military vehicle 

transmission shipments remained at 

historically high levels. 

Our industrial products saw gains with 

Middle East irrigation and oil field-related 

customers. However, the continued 

drought in the U.S. Southeast and a general 

softness in our North American markets 

resulted in a slight decrease in shipments 

year-over-year.

M Ship Company’s M-80 Stiletto concept vessel features 
a twin M-hull proprietary technology that recaptures 
the bow wave to create an air cushion for more efficient 
planing and a smoother ride. Powered by an array of 
Twin Disc propulsion products, the carbon fiber  
vessel is designed for a speed of 50–60 knots.

Also in fiscal 2008, we spent $15.6 million to 

repurchase 660,000 shares of our common 

stock at an average cost of $23.70 per share. 

This represents 5.8 percent of our common 

stock outstanding, and we have 500,000 

shares remaining in our Board-authorized 

stock repurchase program.

O p e r at i o n s  R E v i e w  

Our sales growth during the year was driven 

primarily by global demand from customers 

in the commercial marine, mega yacht, 

airport rescue and fire fighting, and military 

markets. Softness was experienced in the 

oil and gas, and industrial markets. A more 

detailed discussion of our markets and 

products is contained in a following section 

of this report.
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The Pau Casals, built in 1998 by Reyser Tug in 
Barcelona, Spain, has been recently overhauled and  
retrofitted with twin Ulstein Bergen KRMB-61 800- 
horsepower (1325-kW) engines driving Twin Disc  
MCD 3000-4-LD Marine Control Drives.



We are continuing to invest in developing 

new products that will be technologically 

differentiated. Our understanding of 

what our customers want and what the 

application requires, along with our 

engineering capabilities to bring cutting 

edge technologies to the solutions, is one 

of our greatest strengths. Maintaining our 

new product flow to the market is a key 

priority for the Company.

Our manufacturing and sourcing strategy 

has evolved in recent years from one 

that involved a high degree of internal 

machining to our current thrust of 

concentrating on our core competencies 

and outsourcing the easier-to-produce 

components in lower cost countries. These 

efforts are producing a leaner and more 

efficient organization and cost structure.

off   i c e r s  a n d  d i r e c t or  s

David L. Swift, a director of Twin Disc  

since 1995, will be retiring from the Board 

at the October 17, 2008, Annual Meeting. 

We would like to thank David for his sound 

stewardship and counsel during his  

tenure. We will miss him and wish him  

well in retirement.

Michael Doar, Chairman and Chief Executive 

Officer of Hurco Companies, Inc., an 

industrial technology company that designs 

and produces interactive computer controls, 

software and computerized machine tools 

for the worldwide metal cutting and metal 

forming industry, has been nominated to 

replace Mr. Swift. We are excited to have 

Mike join our Board, as he brings a wealth of 

business experience and expertise to us.
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Of course, this transformation of Twin Disc 

has required – and will continue to require –  

the full understanding, support and 

upgrading of the skills and competencies  

of all our employees, including management. 

My sincere thanks goes out to all of our 

associates for the way that they have 

embraced the vision of the Company and  

for the commitment that they have made  

to bring it to reality.

In May, the Board of Directors announced 

the election of John H. Batten to the 

position of President and Chief Operating 

Officer, effective July 1, 2008. Most recently, 

John held the position of Executive Vice 

President, responsible for European 

operations and global marine strategy and 

product development. In his new position, 

he will be responsible for all manufacturing 

operations, as well as marketing, 

engineering, human resources and global 

distribution. This position permanently fills 

the void that occurred in July, 2006, when 

Michael Joyce, then President and Chief 

Operating Officer, retired. 

capital expenditures 
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0	 3,000	 6,000 9,000	 12,000 15,000	 18,000
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For fiscal 2009, we expect demand from the 

commercial marine and mega yacht, defense, 

and airport rescue and fire fighting markets 

to continue to be strong. We are seeing signs 

of a turnaround in demand from customers 

in the industrial markets and have seen an 

increase in inquiries related to the oil and gas 

market. We have just completed another great 

year, and we are cautiously optimistic as we 

start the new fiscal year.

outlook 

As we enter into our 90th year, we are proud  

of the many accomplishments we achieved 

over the past fiscal year and continue to 

plan for the future. We are committed to the 

global expansion of Twin Disc by looking at 

ways to run our business more efficiently and 

investing in new products, machines, facilities, 

systems and people. Our six-month backlog 

at June 30, 2008, was a record $120.8 million, 

compared to $110.4 million at June 30, 2007. 

Michael E. Batten 

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
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Martin-Tec’s 6x6 ARFF (airport rescue and fire fighting) vehicle gets its life-saving performance –  
including the unique Twin Disc “pump and roll” capability – from a Caterpillar C-18 EURO III 
700-horsepower (522-kW) turbocharged diesel engine working through a Twin Disc TD61-1179 
transmission system with TDEC electronic controls, torque converter and PTO. 
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Well servicing company BJ Services keeps their fleet of Gorilla 
frac rigs busy reworking oil and gas wells throughout the south-
west. This group is stationed out of Bossier City, LA. With 3000 
horsepower working through Twin Disc 8500 Transmissions.

Italian yacht manufacturer Alalunga melds beauty and 
performance in its 85 Sport, powered by twin MTU 2400-
horsepower engines driving Arneson Surface Drives to 
achieve speeds up to 49 knots.

The demand for high-horsepower pressure 

pumping rigs subsided in fiscal 2008 in 

the North American market. The slowdown 

resulted from a temporary oversupply 

of rigs built in prior years and a recently 

imposed Canadian tax on well operations 

that further discouraged the purchase of 

new well servicing equipment. This was 

partially offset by continued gains in the 

airport rescue and fire fighting market 

as well as continued strength in the 

Company’s military markets.

The 8500 Series transmission is the largest 

transmission in the oil and gas field. Its 

size allows well servicing contractors the 

economies of scale of fewer but more 

powerful pumping rigs on a given jobsite. 

The performance of this product plus Twin 

Disc’s reputation for quality, reliability and 

service support contributed to its growing 

acceptance in oil and gas markets in Russia 

and China. 

Airport rescue and fire fighting (ARFF) 

vehicle business grew in fiscal 2008 as a 

result of increased penetration at existing 

customers, new European customers and 

the building of new airports around the 

world. Twin Disc’s exclusive “pump and roll” 

technology combined with high quality, 

reliable transmission products provides our 

customers an unparalleled transmission 

system to meet the stringent safety 

performance demands of today’s airports.

Military vehicle transmission shipments 

remained at historically high levels, as M88 

Hercules Tank Retrievers were renewed, 

rebuilt or replaced after action in theater. 

Programs supporting U.S. troops with 

improved armor and increased mobility 

continued in development, with Twin 

Disc actively working with several prime 

contractors to incorporate Twin Disc 

transmission solutions.

As we head into a new fiscal year, demand 

for ARFF and military transmissions remain 

steady. Order inquiries for oil and gas 

transmissions have increased and is an  

area of potential opportunity for fiscal 

2009 and beyond.

	 industrial transmissions
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Below: Twin Disc 8500 Series transmissions help Century 
Frac get maximum production from their fracturing rigs.
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Above: Felderhoff Drilling taps wellsites near  
Fort Worth, Texas, with a BDW 800-MI drawworks 
featuring a number of Twin Disc clutches. 
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some of the key fiscal 2008 highlights.  

These helped to make up for decreases 

experienced in the broader irrigation, 

recycling and construction markets. 

Our industrial product line is truly global, 

with manufacturing occurring in the U.S., 

Belgium and Italy. Included in this product 

family are mechanical and hydraulic 

power take-offs, pump drives, reduction 

gearboxes, universal control drives (UCD) 

and torque converters. 

Business gains with Middle East irrigation 

and oil field-related customers were strong 

points in fiscal 2008, as were sales of pump 

drives into North America and Europe. 

Increased focus on improved distribution 

to OEMs and engine packagers stabilized 

industrial product business in North 

America. Partially countering these positive 

results were the impact on sales of the 

continued drought in the U.S. Southeast 

and a decline in our waste recycling 

business. In addition, we embarked on 

a program to expand our already global 

distribution network into developing 

markets, such as Russia and China. 

Global outsourcing of high volume, low 

complexity components of our industrial 

products increased again this past year, 

with cost benefits now being realized. 

Improved cost support significantly 

advances the growth of our industrial 

products on the global stage.

At the end of fiscal 2008, our industrial 

products saw an increase in sales, order 

rates and backlog versus the same period  

a year ago. 

Below: Hooker Sand & Gravel uses a dredge built by 
Assemblers, a Division of Sparkle Company, to excavate 
sand and gravel near Grand Isle, Nebraska. The dredge 
uses a CAT V12 3412 engine working through a Twin 
Disc SP318SBO clutch to drive the rotary cutter and a 
John Deere 12-liter engine working through a Twin Disc 
SP214P1 clutch to power the pump.
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Demand for Twin Disc’s global line of 

industrial products was somewhat soft for 

the first three fiscal quarters of 2008 but 

picked up in the fourth fiscal quarter as 

sales and order rates increased. An increase 

in market share in the North American 

irrigation market – albeit in a down market, 

new business acquisition in the Middle  

East, increased well servicing business  

and expanded global distribution were 

industrial Products

Above: Lane Recycling’s 5212 Tub Grinder can process 
up to 200 yards per hour of stumps, logs, construction 
and demolition waste, greenway waste and more, with a 
700-horsepower (522-kW) CAT engine working through 
a Twin Disc HP-300D Hydraulic Power Take-Off. The PTO 
is equipped with pump drives to power the hammermill 
as well as provide propulsion for the tracks to take the 
machine where most grinders can’t go.

Below: Industrial Irrigation Services in Hastings, Nebraska, 
connects Twin Disc SP111 HP3 clutches to John Deere 
PowerTech 6.8 liter diesel engines for typical power 
packages used for various types of irrigation applications 
around Nebraska.
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New Holland D75, D85 and D95 crawler dozers produced 
by CNH in Calhoun, Illinois, are shipped all over the 
world equipped with Twin Disc torque converters. 

Below: Resource Recovery Systems, Inc.’s KW 614 Composter, 
shown here traversing a windrow of dried cattle manure, uses 
a Twin Disc clutch to engage the drum which turns and grinds 
the manure into a fine compost. 
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The global work boat market continued to 

grow again in fiscal 2008, continuing the 

trend of the last few years. Our backlog 

grew throughout the year as the demand 

for all segments of the market increased. 

Globally, the main driver for the growth in 

the market is the support for offshore oil 

and gas exploration, supplying both people 

and material to drilling and production 

platforms. Our QuickShift® marine 

transmission technology is setting the 

standard for DP2 (dynamic positioning, 

second generation) interface.

QuickShift® transmissions allow 

instantaneous, shockless, virtually constant 

shifting from forward to reverse, to keep 

a supply vessel “on station” as governed 

by its global positioning system. Multiple 

engines are shifted from forward to reverse 

50, 60, 70 times a minute to keep the craft 

stationary within a meter or so tolerance, 

often in very rough seas. Demand for 

QuickShift® transmissions will continue to 

increase in this growing segment of  

the business.

The production of offshore vessels (OSV) 

and crew and supply boats has increasingly 

become more global, stimulated by the 

worldwide demand for oil and gas. Our 

Twin Disc subsidiary operation in Singapore 

is increasing its market share, with strong 

marine transmission sales to all the 

Southeast Asian shipyards involved in crew 

boat and OSV construction. Domestic 

marine transmission sales into this 

segment have sustained very high levels, as 

North American yards remain at capacity. 

We continue to target the European and 

Middle Eastern shipbuilders, since they,  

too, are growing in importance in the oil 

and gas industry.

The offshore energy markets will become 

more global and vessels more sophisticated. 

Twin Disc is committed to broadening our 

support and products of this dynamic market 

segment, through new transmission models 

and configurations. 

The North American inland push boat  

fleet continued its strong demand for  

new vessel construction. With most yards  

at capacity, operators are experiencing 

longer lead times to receive new boats, 

resulting in strong order backlogs for our 

marine transmission products that serve  

this segment.

Overall, the work boat market for fiscal  

2008 was extremely good for Twin Disc. 

Considering our order backlog, we remain 

optimistic about conditions going forward.

	 Work boat market

Annual 
Report 

2008

13

Below: Ugie Runner, designed by Macduff Ship Design 
and built by Macduff Shipbuilders, uses twin Scania D112 
59M 10-45 main engines generating 350 horsepower 
(261 kW) each at 1,800 rpm (heavy-duty rating) through 
Twin Disc QuickShift® MGX-5114 DC transmissions to twin 
1,300 mm diameter, four-blade, fixed-pitch propellers.

Seacor Marine’s Gulf Craft-built 190’  
crewboat John G. McCall supplies well  
servicing materials to deep water oil and gas 
platforms in the Gulf of Mexico, using five 
MGX-6848 Twin Disc marine transmissions, 
powered by Cummins KTA 50 engines.
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Reyser Tug’s Roman Casas in Barcelona, Spain, along 
with its sister tug Salvador Dali utilize the proven 
power and precise maneuvering of a Twin Disc  
3000-7-HD Marine Control Drive (MCD) matched 
with a CAT 3516 2239-horsepower (1670-kW) engine.



The demand for large pleasure craft vessels 

increased yet again in fiscal 2008. The vast 

majority of this growth occurred outside 

North America, primarily in Italy, the United 

Kingdom, and other European countries. 

The production of mega yachts in the 

Asian/Pacific Rim continues to grow 

with the burgeoning customer base in 

this region. The demand for our Arneson 

Surface Drives, Rolla propellers, marine 

electronic controls and larger marine 

transmissions has grown significantly with 

this market expansion. 

The acquisition of BCS, an Italian 

manufacturer of marine hydraulic 

components and boat management 

systems, has also improved our sales efforts 

and offerings in the mega yacht segment.

The smaller end of the pleasure craft 

market suffered again in fiscal 2008. 

Builders of smaller cruising and sport 

fishing boats, primarily in the North 

American market, continued to scale back 

production and their work force. High fuel 

costs and overall economic uncertainty 

have impacted the purchasing decisions of 

the customers in this smaller vessel range. 

Much of this volume remains gasoline 

engine based, with either stern-drive or 

small marine transmissions, and out of our 

standard range. 

Even with the continued softness in the 

small pleasure craft market, we have been 

able to maintain a healthy level of demand 

for most of our traditional pleasure craft 

marine transmission models, because they 

are used throughout the small work boat 

and military vessel markets. 

The overall military market for fast patrol 

boats has also remained strong over the 

last few years. Several global tenders in 

North America, the Middle East and Asia 

have kept the market extremely active for 

both waterjet and surface drive propulsion, 

as the need for high-speed interceptors 

increases. The demand for 12- to 25-meter 

patrol boats fits exactly in our package of 

Arneson Surface Drives, Rolla propellers, 

marine transmissions and BCS portfolio.
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Roy Capasso of Baia High Performance Yachts in Baia, 
Italy, stands at the stern of his new 100’ yacht, which 
will utilize Arneson ASD 16 Surface Drives.
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Fiscal 2008 was a year of great expansion 

for our QuickShift® marine transmission 

product line. We have completed the  

design conversion of all standard marine 

transmission models above 500 horse-

power to the QuickShift® configuration 

and introduced them to the work boat 

markets. The advantage to the work boat 

customers becomes obvious when they feel 

a much softer shift, are able to maneuver 

the vessels with instantaneous shift control 

and can operate the boats at very low yet 

controllable speeds when required. We will 

continue to design the unique QuickShift® 

feature into new marine transmission 

products. The more customers experience 

the advantages of QuickShift® features, the 

greater the demand for these products.

Q u i c k S h i f t® M a r i n e  Tr  a n s m i s s i o n s
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Above: The Baia Atlantica 78 pairs twin MTU 16V  
engines with Arneson Surface Drives to obtain  
maximum performance and fuel efficiency.
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ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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None
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. 
Yes  [  ]    No  [√]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), 
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.       Yes  [√]          No  [  ]

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S‑K is not contained herein, and  
will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by refer-
ence in Part III of this Form 10‑K or any amendment to this Form 10‑K.  [√]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer (as defined in 
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Large Accelerated Filer  [  ]        Accelerated Filer  [√]        Non-accelerated Filer  [  ]
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held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $311,528,868. Determination of stock ownership by affiliates was made solely for the purpose 
of responding to this requirement and registrant is not bound by this determination for any other purpose.

At August 29, 2008, the registrant had 11,107,992 shares of its common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE: 
Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which will be filed  
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Item 1. Business
Twin Disc was incorporated under the laws of the state of Wisconsin in 1918. Twin Disc designs, manufactures and sells marine and 
heavy duty off‑highway power transmission equipment. Products offered include: marine transmissions, surface drives, propellers and 
boat management systems as well as power-shift transmissions, hydraulic torque converters, power take-offs, industrial clutches and 
controls systems. The Company sells its products to customers primarily in the pleasure craft, commercial and military marine markets 
as well as in the energy and natural resources, government and industrial markets. The Company’s worldwide sales to both domestic 
and foreign customers are transacted through a direct sales force and a distributor network. The products described above have 
accounted for more than 90% of revenues in each of the last three fiscal years.

Most of the Company’s products are machined from cast iron, forgings, cast aluminum and bar steel which generally are available from 
multiple sources and which are believed to be in adequate supply.

In May 2006, the Company acquired four related foreign entities: B.C.S. S.r.l., an Italian limited liability company; B.C.S. Service S.r.l., 
an Italian limited liability company; Boat Equipment Limited, a Maltese limited liability company; and Vetus Italia S.r.l., an Italian 
limited liability company. The total cash purchase price for the acquisition of the four entities was €17,715,000 ($22,707,000). For 
further information, see Note Q, “Acquisitions,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. All of the acquired entities are 
included in the Manufacturing segment, with the exception of Vetus Italia S.r.l., which is included in the Distribution segment.

The Company has pursued a policy of applying for patents in both the United States and certain foreign countries on inventions made 
in the course of its development work for which commercial applications are considered probable. The Company regards its patents 
collectively as important but does not consider its business dependent upon any one of such patents.

The business is not considered to be seasonal except to the extent that employee vacations are taken mainly in the months of July and 
August, curtailing production during that period.

The Company’s products receive direct widespread competition, including from divisions of other larger independent manufacturers. 
The Company also competes for business with parts manufacturing divisions of some of its major customers. Primary competitive 
factors for the Company’s products are performance, price, service and availability. The Company’s top ten customers accounted for 
approximately 28% of the Company’s consolidated net sales during the year ended June 30, 2008. There were no customers that 
accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2008.

Unfilled open orders for the next six months of $120,774,000 at June 30, 2008, compares to $110,357,000 at June 30, 2007. Since 
orders are subject to cancellation and rescheduling by the customer, the six‑month order backlog is considered more representative of 
operating conditions than total backlog. However, as procurement and manufacturing “lead times” change, the backlog will increase 
or decrease; and thus it does not necessarily provide a valid indicator of the shipping rate. Cancellations are generally the result of 
rescheduling activity and do not represent a material change in backlog. 

Management recognizes that there are attendant risks that foreign governments may place restrictions on dividend payments and 
other movements of money, but these risks are considered minimal due to the political relations the United States maintains with 
the countries in which the Company operates or the relatively low investment within individual countries. No material portion of the 
Company’s business is subject to renegotiation of profits or termination of contracts at the election of the Government.

Engineering and development costs include research and development expenses for new product development and major 
improvements to existing products, and other charges for ongoing efforts to refine existing products. Research and development costs 
charged to operations totaled $2,788,000, $3,329,000 and $2,024,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Total engineering 
and development costs were $9,025,000, $9,327,000 and $8,070,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Compliance with federal, state and local provisions regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, or otherwise relating 
to the protection of the environment, is not anticipated to have a material effect on capital expenditures, earnings or the competitive 
position of the Company.

The number of persons employed by the Company at June 30, 2008, was 1,019.

A summary of financial data by segment and geographic area for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 appears in Note J to 
the consolidated financial statements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors 
The Company’s business involves risk. The following information about these risks should be considered carefully together with other 
information contained in this report. The risks described below are not the only risks the Company faces. Additional risks not currently 
known or deemed immaterial may also result in adverse results for the Company’s business.

PART  I
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As a global company, we are subject to currency fluctuations and any significant movement between the U.S. Dollar and the Euro, in 
particular, could have an adverse effect on our profitability. Although the Company’s financial results are reported in U.S. Dollars, a 
significant portion of our sales and operating costs are realized in Euros and other foreign currencies. The Company’s profitability  
is affected by movements of the U.S. Dollar against the Euro and the other currencies in which we generate revenues and incur  
expenses. Significant long-term fluctuations in relative currency values, in particular a significant change in the relative values of the 
U.S. Dollar or Euro, could have an adverse effect on our profitability and financial condition.

Certain of the Company’s products are directly or indirectly used in oil exploration and oil drilling, and are thus dependent upon the 
strength of those markets and oil prices. Over the past several years, the Company has seen a significant growth in the sales of its 
products that are used in oil and energy-related markets. The growth in these markets has been spurred by the rise in oil prices and 
the global demand for oil. In addition, there has been a substantial increase in capital investment by companies in these markets. A 
significant decrease in oil prices, the demand for oil and/or capital investment in the oil and energy markets could have an adverse 
effect on the sales of these products and ultimately on the Company’s profitability. 

Many of the Company’s product markets are cyclical in nature or are otherwise sensitive to volatile or variable factors. A downturn or 
weakness in overall economic activity or fluctuations in those other factors can have a material adverse effect on the Company’s overall 
financial performance. Historically, sales of many of the products that the Company manufactures and sells have been subject to 
cyclical variations caused by changes in general economic conditions and other factors. In particular, the Company sells its products 
to customers primarily in the pleasure craft, commercial and military marine markets, as well as in the energy and natural resources, 
government and industrial markets. The demand for the products may be impacted by the strength of the economy, generally,  
governmental spending and appropriations, including security and defense outlays, fuel prices, interest rates, as well as many other 
factors. Adverse economic and other conditions may cause the Company’s customers to forego or otherwise postpone purchases in 
favor of repairing existing equipment. 

Given the increase in the global demand for steel, the Company could be adversely affected if it experiences shortages of raw castings 
and forgings used in the manufacturing of its products. With the recent growth in the global economy and the continued development 
of certain third world economies, in particular China and India, the global demand for steel has risen significantly in recent years. 
The Company selects its suppliers based on a number of criteria, and we expect that they will be able to support our growing needs. 
However, there can be no assurance that a significant increase in demand, capacity constraints or other issues experienced by the 
Company’s suppliers will not result in shortages or delays in their supply of raw materials to the Company. If the Company were to 
experience a significant or prolonged shortage of critical components from any of its suppliers, particularly those who are sole sources 
and could not procure the components from other sources, the Company would be unable to meet its production schedules for some 
of its key products and would miss product delivery dates which would adversely affect our sales, profitability and relationships with 
our customers.

If the Company were to lose business with any key customers, the Company’s business would be adversely affected. Although there were 
no customers that accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2008, deterioration of a business relationship with 
one or more of the Company’s significant customers would cause its sales and profitability to be adversely affected. 

The Company continues to face increasing commodity costs, including steel, other raw materials and energy that could have an adverse 
effect on future profitability. To date, the Company has been successful with offsetting the effects of increased commodity costs 
through cost reduction programs and pricing actions. However, if material prices were to continue to increase at a rate that could not 
be recouped through product pricing, it could potentially have an adverse effect on our future profitability. 

The termination of relationships with the Company’s suppliers, or the inability of such suppliers to perform, could disrupt its business 
and have an adverse effect on its ability to manufacture and deliver products. The Company relies on raw materials, component parts, 
and services supplied by outside third parties. If a supplier of significant raw materials, component parts or services were to terminate 
its relationship with the Company, or otherwise cease supplying raw materials, component parts, or services consistent with past prac-
tice, the Company’s ability to meet its obligations to its customers may be affected. Such a disruption with respect to numerous prod-
ucts, or with respect to a few significant products, could have an adverse effect on the Company’s profitability and financial condition.

A significant design, manufacturing or supplier quality issue could result in recalls or other actions by the Company that could adversely 
affect profitability. As a manufacturer of highly engineered products, the performance, reliability and productivity of the Company’s 
products is one of its competitive advantages.  While the Company prides itself on putting in place procedures to ensure the quality 
and performance of its products and suppliers, a significant quality or product issue, whether due to design, performance, manufactur-
ing or supplier quality issue, could lead to warranty actions, scrapping of raw materials, finished goods or sold products, the deteriora-
tion in a customer relation, or other action that could adversely affect warranty and quality costs, future sales and profitability. 



21 T w i n  D i s c ,  I n c o r p o r a t e d   ANN   U A L  REPOR     T  2 0 0 8

The Company faces risks associated with its international sales and operations that could adversely affect its business, results of opera-
tions or financial condition. Sales to customers outside the United States approximated 55% of our consolidated net sales for fiscal 
2008. We have international manufacturing operations in Belgium, Italy and Switzerland. In addition, we have international distribu-
tion operations in Singapore, China, Australia, Japan, Italy and Canada. Our international sales and operations are subject to a number 
of risks, including:

	 – currency exchange rate fluctuations 
	 – export and import duties, changes to import and export regulations and restrictions on the transfer of funds 
	 – problems with the transportation or delivery of our products 
	 – issues arising from cultural or language differences and labor unrest 
	 – longer payment cycles and greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivables 
	 – compliance with trade and other laws in a variety of jurisdictions

These factors could adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition.

A material disruption at the Company’s manufacturing facilities in Racine, Wisconsin, could adversely affect its ability to generate sales 
and meet customer demand. The majority of the Company’s manufacturing, based on fiscal 2008’s sales, came from its two facilities in 
Racine, Wisconsin. If operations at these facilities were to be disrupted as a result of significant equipment failures, natural disasters, 
power outages, fires, explosions, adverse weather conditions or other reasons, the Company’s business and results of operations could 
be adversely affected. Interruptions in production would increase costs and reduce sales. Any interruption in production capability 
could require the Company to make substantial capital expenditures to remedy the situation, which could negatively affect its profit-
ability and financial condition. The Company maintains property damage insurance which it believes to be adequate to provide for  
reconstruction of its facilities and equipment, as well as business interruption insurance to mitigate losses resulting from any  
production interruption or shutdown caused by an insured loss. However, any recovery under this insurance policy may not offset  
the lost sales or increased costs that may be experienced during the disruption of operations. Lost sales may not be recoverable under 
the policy and long-term business disruptions could result in a loss of customers. If this were to occur, future sales levels and costs of 
doing business, and therefore profitability, could be adversely affected.

Item 1B. Unresolved staff comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
Manufacturing Segment 
The Company owns two manufacturing, assembly and office facilities in Racine, Wisconsin, U.S.A., one in Nivelles, Belgium, two in  
Decima, Italy, and one in Novazzano, Switzerland. The aggregate floor space of these six plants approximates 724,000 square feet. One 
of the Racine facilities includes office space, which includes the Company’s corporate headquarters. The Company leases  
additional manufacturing, assembly and office facilities in Italy (Limite sull’Arno) and India (outsourcing office in Chennai).

Distribution Segment 
The Company also has operations in the following locations, all of which are used for sales offices, warehousing and light assembly or 
product service. The following properties are leased:

Jacksonville, Florida, U.S.A.	 Edmonton, Alberta, Canada	 Singapore
Medley, Florida, U.S.A.	 Burnaby, British Columbia, Canada	 Shanghai, China
Coburg, Oregon, U.S.A.	 Brisbane, Queensland, Australia	 Guangzhou, China
Kent, Washington, U.S.A.	 Perth, Western Australia, Australia	 Limite sull’Arno, Italy

The properties are generally suitable for operations and are utilized in the manner for which they were designed. Manufacturing  
facilities are currently operating at less than 90% capacity and are adequate to meet foreseeable needs of the Company.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Twin Disc is a defendant in several product liability or related claims of which the ultimate outcome and liability to the Company, if 
any, is not presently determinable. Management believes that the final disposition of such litigation will not have a material impact on 
the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the year ended June 30, 2008.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant 
Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the following list is included as an unnumbered Item in Part I of this Report in lieu 
of being included in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on October 17, 2008.

Name  Position	 Age
Michael E. Batten Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 68

John H. Batten President and Chief Operating Officer 43

Christopher J. Eperjesy Vice President – Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 40

James E. Feiertag Executive Vice President  51

Henri-Claude Fabry Vice President – Global Distribution 62

Dean J. Bratel Vice President – Engineering  44

Denise L. Wilcox Vice President – Human Resources 51

Jeffrey S. Knutson Corporate Controller 43

Thomas E. Valentyn General Counsel and Secretary 49

Officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors at the Board meeting held in conjunction with each Annual Meeting of  
the Shareholders. Each officer holds office until a successor is duly elected, or until he/she resigns or is removed from office.

Michael E. Batten, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Batten has been employed with the Company since 1970, and was named 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 1991. Mr. Batten was named President in 2006, upon the retirement of Michael Joyce and 
relinquished this role effective July 1, 2008, with the appointment of John Batten as President and Chief Operating Officer.

John H. Batten, President and Chief Operating Officer. Effective July 1, 2008, Mr. Batten has been named President and Chief 
Operating Officer. Prior to the July promotion, Mr. Batten served as Executive Vice President since November 2004, after serving as 
Vice President and General Manager – Marine and Propulsion since October 2001 and Commercial Manager – Marine and Propulsion 
since 1998. Mr. Batten joined Twin Disc in 1996 as an Application Engineer. Mr. Batten is the son of Mr. Michael Batten.

Christopher J. Eperjesy, Vice President – Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Mr. Eperjesy joined the Company in his current 
role in November 2002. Prior to joining Twin Disc, Mr. Eperjesy was Divisional Vice President – Financial Planning & Analysis for Kmart 
Corporation since 2001, and Senior Manager – Corporate Finance with DaimlerChrysler AG since 1999.

James E. Feiertag, Executive Vice President. Mr. Feiertag was appointed to his present position in October 2001. Prior to being 
promoted, he served as Vice President – Manufacturing since joining the Company in November 2000. Prior to joining Twin Disc,  
Mr. Feiertag was the Vice President of Manufacturing for the Drives and Systems Group of Rockwell Automation since 1999.

Henri-Claude Fabry, Vice President – Global Distribution. Mr. Fabry was appointed to his current position in October 2001, after 
serving as Vice President – Marine and Distribution since 1999. Mr. Fabry joined Twin Disc in 1997 as Director, Marketing and Sales  
of the Belgian subsidiary.

Dean J. Bratel, Vice President – Engineering. Mr. Bratel was promoted to his current role in November 2004 after serving as Director 
of Corporate Engineering (since January 2003), Chief Engineer (since October 2001) and Engineering Manager (since December 1999). 
Mr. Bratel joined Twin Disc in 1987.

Denise L. Wilcox, Vice President – Human Resources. After joining the Company as Manager Compensation & Benefits in September 
1998, Ms. Wilcox was promoted to Director Corporate Human Resources in March 2002 and to her current role in November 2004. 
Prior to joining Twin Disc, Ms. Wilcox held positions with Johnson International and Runzheimer International.

Jeffrey S. Knutson, Corporate Controller. Mr. Knutson was appointed to his current role in October 2005 after joining the Company 
in February 2005 as Controller of North American Operations. Prior to joining Twin Disc, Mr. Knutson held Operational Controller 
positions with Tower Automotive (since August 2002) and Rexnord Corporation (since November 1998).

Thomas E. Valentyn, General Counsel and Secretary. Mr. Valentyn joined the Company in his current role in September 2007. Prior to 
joining Twin Disc, Mr. Valentyn served as Vice President and General Counsel at Norlight Telecommunications, Inc. since July 2000. 
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Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters
The Company’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol TWIN. The price information below,  
which reflects the impact of the December 31, 2007, stock split, represents the high and low sales prices from July 1, 2006, through  
June 30, 2008:

 Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 	  Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
  High Low	 Dividend  High Low	 Dividend
 First Quarter $41.99 $23.51	 $0.0550 First Quarter $19.00 $15.15	 $0.0475
 Second Quarter   37.47   25.51	   0.0700 Second Quarter   18.28   15.51	   0.0475
 Third Quarter   36.35   12.07	   0.0700 Third Quarter   23.49    16.25	   0.0550
 Fourth Quarter   23.34   13.38	   0.0700 Fourth Quarter   38.00   21.10	   0.0550

For information regarding the Company’s equity-based compensation plans, see the discussion under Item 12. As of August 29, 2008, 
shareholders of record numbered 756. The closing price of Twin Disc common stock as of August 29, 2008, was $18.37.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 
		   (c) Total number of 	 (d) Maximum number 
		   shares purchased as part	 of shares that may yet 
	 (a) Total number of	 (b) Average price of publicly announced	 be purchased under

Period	 shares purchased	 paid per share plans or programs	 the plans or programs	 ____________________	 ___________________ _______________________	 ________________________
April 1–30, 2008	 0	 N/A 0	 500,000
May 1–31, 2008	 0	 N/A 0	 500,000
June 1–30, 2008	 0	 N/A 0	 500,000	 ________	 ________ ________	 __________
Total 	 0	 ________	 ________

On July 27, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to 200,000 shares of Common Stock at market values. This 
resolution superseded the resolution previously adopted by the Board in January 2002. On August 14, 2007, the Board of Directors 
authorized the purchase of an additional 200,000 shares of Common Stock at market values. On February 1, 2008, the Board of Directors 
authorized the purchase of an additional 500,000 shares of Common Stock at market values.

Performance Graph 
The following table compares total shareholder return over the last 5 fiscal years to the Standard & Poor’s 500 Machinery (Industrial) 
Index and the Russell 2000 index. The S&P 500 Machinery (Industrial) Index consists of a broad range of manufacturers. The Russell 
2000 Index consists of a broad range of 2,000 companies. The Company believes, because of the similarity of its business with those 
companies contained in the S&P 500 Machinery (Industrial) Index, that comparison of shareholder return with this index is appropriate. 
Total return values for the Corporation’s common stock, the S&P 500 Machinery (Industrial) Index and the Russell 2000 Index were 
calculated based upon an assumption of a $100 investment on June 30, 2003, and based upon cumulative total return values assuming 
reinvestment of dividends on a quarterly basis.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Financial Highlights
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

	 For the years ended June 30,
Statement of Operations Data:	  2008 2007 2006	 2005 2004 	  ________ ________ ________	 ________ ________
Net sales   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   $331,694 $317,200  $243,287 	 $218,472  $186,089
Net earnings   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  24,252  21,852 14,453 	 6,910  5,643 	
Basic earnings per share  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .                           2.15 1.88 1.26 	 0.60  0.50 	
Diluted earnings per share  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   2.13 1.84 1.22 	 0.59  0.50 	
Dividends per share  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  0.265 0.205  0.1825 	 0.175  0.175 

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):
Total assets   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  $304,628  $267,184 $236,172 	 $188,037  $174,622 
�Total long-term debt   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .                             48,227  42,152 38,369 	 14,958  16,813 

Effective May 31, 2006, the Company acquired four related foreign entities: B.C.S. S.r.l., an Italian limited liability company; B.C.S. 
Service S.r.l., an Italian limited liability company; Boat Equipment Limited, a Maltese limited liability company; and Vetus Italia S.r.l., an 
Italian limited liability company.  All four entities have a fiscal year ending May 31. Since the acquisition was also effective May 31, no 
results of operations for these four acquired entities are included in the consolidated results for the year ended June 30, 2006. A full 
year’s results are included in the consolidated results for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2008.

Effective May 31, 2004, the Company acquired 100% of the common stock of Rolla SP Propellers SA of Novazzano, Switzerland. Rolla 
designs and manufactures custom propellers. Rolla has a fiscal year ending May 31. Since the acquisition was also effective May 31, no 
results of operations of Rolla are included in consolidated results for the year ended June 30, 2004. A full year’s results are included in 
the consolidated results for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

In January 2004, the Company sold its 25% minority interest in Palmer Johnson Distributors, LLC (PJD) to the majority holder, PJD, Inc. 
for $3,811,000 cash, which approximated the net book value of the investment. The Company recognized pre-tax earnings of $240,000 
in fiscal year 2004 from its investment in PJD. In addition, the Company received cash distributions of $195,000 in fiscal year 2004.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Note on Forward-Looking Statements

Statements in this report (including but not limited to certain statements in Items 1, 3 and 7) and in other Company communications 
that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements, which are based on management’s current expectations. These statements 
involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from what appears here.

Forward-looking statements include the Company’s description of plans and objectives for future operations and assumptions behind 
those plans. The words “anticipates,” “believes,” “intends,” “estimates,” and “expects,” or similar anticipatory expressions, usually 
identify forward-looking statements. In addition, goals established by the Company should not be viewed as guarantees or promises of 
future performance. There can be no assurance the Company will be successful in achieving its goals. 

In addition to the assumptions and information referred to specifically in the forward-looking statements, other factors, including, but 
not limited to those factors discussed under Item 1A, Risk Factors, could cause actual results to be materially different from what is 
presented in any forward looking statements.

Results of Operations  
	 (In thousands)		  2008	 %	 2007	 %	 2006	 %		   	 ________	 ________	 ________	 ________	 ________	 ________
Net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   	 $331,694		  $317,200		  $243,287
Cost of goods sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  	 226,826		  214,291		  168,897		   	 ________		  ________		  ________	
	 Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                           	 104,868	 31.6%	 102,909	 32.4%	 74,390	 30.6%
Marketing, engineering and administrative expenses	 66,349	 20.0%	 63,267	 19.9%	 49,606	 20.4%
Restructuring of operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 	 (373	)	 (0.1%	)	 2,652	 0.8%	 —	 0%		   	 ________		  ________		  ________	
	 Earnings from operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              	 $ 38,892	 11.7%	 $ 36,990	 11.7%	 $  24,784	 10.2%			   ________	 ______	 ________	 ______	 ________	 ______			   ________	 ______	 ________	 ______	 ________	 ______
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Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Net Sales
Net sales increased $14.5 million, or 4.6%, in fiscal 2008. The year-over-year movement in foreign exchange rates resulted in a net 
favorable translation effect on sales of $16.6 million in fiscal 2008, compared to fiscal 2007. 

In fiscal 2008, sales for our worldwide manufacturing operations, before eliminating intra-segment and inter-segment sales, were 
$10.6 million, or 3.7%, higher than in the prior fiscal year. Year-over-year changes in foreign exchange rates had a net favorable impact 
on sales of $13.2 million. A slight decrease in sales at the Company’s domestic manufacturing operation, primarily driven by a decrease 
in sales of oil field-related transmissions partially offset by increased sales of marine and propulsion products, was offset by increases 
at the Company’s Italian and Swiss manufacturing operations, which focus on the Italian and global mega yacht markets. Overall, 
demand from the Company’s customers in the commercial marine and mega yacht markets remained high, which continued to be 
offset by softness in oil and gas transmission sales.

Net sales for distribution operations were up $17.0 million, or 17.3%, in fiscal 2008. Year-over-year changes in foreign exchange rates 
had a net favorable impact on sales of $8.7 million. Of the remaining net increase of $8.3 million, the majority of the net increase came 
from the Company’s distribution operations in Asia, where the company continued to see strong demand for its commercial marine 
transmission products, and Australia, driven by improved pleasure craft transmission sales. 

Net sales for the Company’s largest product market, marine and propulsion systems, were up nearly 16%. This was partially offset by 
an approximately 13% decline in transmission product sales, primarily due to softening in the markets for oil and gas transmissions, 
and a 4% decline in industrial product markets, primarily in North America. This net year-over-year increase is before considering the 
net favorable foreign currency translation effect noted above. Growth in the marine and propulsion market was driven primarily by 
increased commercial and mega yacht marine transmission sales, as well as increased sales of Arneson Surface Drives and custom 
Rolla propellers. In the off-highway transmission market, the year-over-year decrease can be attributed primarily to decreased sales 
in land-based oil field markets, only partially offset by increased sales of the Company’s transmissions for the airport rescue and fire 
fighting market.  The decrease experienced in the Company’s industrial products was also due in part to the decreased activity related 
to oil field markets as well as decreased sales into the agriculture, mining and general industrial markets, primarily in the North 
American and Italian markets. 

The elimination for net intra-segment and inter-segment sales increased $13.1 million, or 18.7%, from $69.9 million in fiscal 2007 to 
$82.9 million in fiscal 2008. Year-over-year changes in foreign exchange rates had a net impact of $5.3 million on net intra-segment 
and inter-segment sales.  

Gross Profit
In fiscal 2008, gross profit increased $2.0 million, or 1.9%, to $104.9 million. Gross profit as a percentage of sales decreased 80 basis 
points in fiscal 2008 to 31.6%, compared to 32.4% in fiscal 2007. There were a number of factors that impacted the Company’s overall 
gross margin rate in fiscal 2008. For the year, profitability continued to improve from the implementation of cost reduction and 
outsourcing programs, manufacturing efficiencies, and selective price increases. The Company’s margins continued to be unfavorably 
impacted by rising steel, energy and medical costs. In addition, the Company’s Belgian operation’s gross margin was unfavorably 
affected by the continued relative strength of the Euro versus the U.S. Dollar, when compared to the average rate in fiscal 2007. 
This operation manufactures with Euro-based costs and sells more than a third of its production into the U.S. market at U.S. Dollar 
prices. The average Euro to U.S. Dollar exchange rate, computed monthly, in fiscal 2008 was $1.48, which was 13.0% higher than in 
fiscal 2007. It is estimated that the year-over-year effect of a stronger Euro, on average, was to deteriorate margins at our Belgian 
subsidiary by nearly $1.8 million. Fiscal 2007’s gross profit included unfavorable non-cash, non-recurring purchase accounting 
adjustments to inventory at the BCS Group companies of $1.2 million, pre-tax, which did not occur in fiscal year 2008. The adjustment 
reduced gross profit by nearly 40 basis points in fiscal 2007. These adverse effects were partially offset by (1) selective pricing 
actions, (2) improvements achieved through the Company’s outsourcing and cost reduction programs, (3) lower domestic pension 
and postretirement healthcare costs of approximately $1.3 million and (4) lower domestic bonus expense of roughly $0.5 million. The 
year-over-year movement in foreign exchange rates, primarily driven by movements in the Euro, resulted in a net favorable translation 
effect on gross profit of $6.7 million in fiscal 2008, compared to fiscal 2007. 

Marketing, Engineering and Administrative (ME&A) Expenses
Marketing, engineering, and administrative (ME&A) expenses increased $3.1 million, or 4.9%, in fiscal 2008 versus fiscal 2007. As a 
percentage of sales, ME&A expenses increased by 10 basis points to 20.0% in fiscal 2008, compared to 19.9% in fiscal 2007. The year-
over-year increase in domestic and corporate IT costs, primarily related to the implementation of a global ERP system, was $1.5 million 
compared to fiscal 2007. In addition, year-over-year changes in foreign exchange rates had a net translation effect of increasing ME&A 
expenses by $3.0 million. These increases were partially offset by a $1.5 million reduction in the Company’s stock based compensation 
expense as a result of a decline in the price of the Company’s stock during the fiscal year as well as lower domestic pension and bonus 
expenses of $0.4 million and $0.5 million, respectively. 



26T w i n  D i s c ,  I n c o r p o r a t e d   ANN   U A L  REPOR     T  2 0 0 8

Restructuring of Operations
During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of $2.7 million related to a workforce 
reduction at its Belgian operation that will allow for improved profitability through targeted outsourcing savings and additional focus 
on core manufacturing processes. The charge consisted of prepension costs for 32 employees: 29 manufacturing employees and  
3 salaried employees. This charge was adjusted in the fourth quarter of 2008, resulting in a pre-tax benefit of $373,000, due to final 
negotiations primarily related to notice period pay. During fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company made cash payments of $103,000 and 
$0, respectively. Accrued restructuring costs were $2,603,000 and $2,652,000 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased by $0.1 million, or 3.7%, in fiscal 2008. Total interest on the Company’s $35 million revolving credit facility 
decreased less than $0.1 million to $1.3 million. This decrease can be attributed to a decrease in the interest rate on the revolver year-
over-year which more than offset an overall increase in the average borrowings year-over-year. The average borrowing on the revolver, 
computed monthly, increased to $22.8 million in fiscal 2008, compared to $18.9 million in fiscal 2007. More than offsetting the average 
increased borrowing, the interest rate on the revolver decreased from a range of 6.13% to 6.60% in fiscal 2007 to a range of 3.71% 
to 6.97% in fiscal 2008. Interest expense for the Company’s $25 million Senior Notes, which carry a fixed interest rate of 6.05%, 
remained flat at $1.5 million. The net remaining interest expense of $0.2 million was from various borrowings at the Company’s  
foreign subsidiaries.

Income Taxes
In fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company’s effective tax rate approximated 30.9% and 35.8%, respectively. The improvement is the result 
of a reduction in the Italian corporate tax rate announced in December 2007 from 37.3% to 31.4%, resulting in a favorable adjustment 
to deferred taxes of approximately $1.2 million, and favorable tax adjustments of approximately $1.3 million primarily related to foreign 
and state tax provision adjustments. The decrease in the effective tax rate in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to $1.5 million of favorable 
tax adjustments primarily related to research and development (“R&D”) tax credits recorded primarily in the fourth quarter. This tax 
benefit was recorded upon the completion of a study the Company conducted on its R&D expenditures from 2003 to 2007. 

Order Rates
As of June 30, 2008, the Company’s backlog of orders scheduled for shipment during the next six months (six-month backlog) was 
$120.8 million, or 9.4% higher than the six-month backlog of $110.4 million as of June 30, 2007. The Company estimates that roughly 
two-thirds of the year-over-year increase can be attributed to favorable foreign currency translation as a result of the relative 
strengthening of the Euro and Swiss Franc compared to the U.S. Dollar. The Company’s domestic manufacturing operation saw an 
increase in its marine and propulsion, and industrial product backlog which was more than offset by softening in its land-based 
transmission product backlog. The Company’s European manufacturing operations saw a net increase, after adjusting for the effect of 
foreign currency translation, in their six-month backlogs, primarily for products serving the Italian and global mega yacht markets.  

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Net Sales
Net sales increased $73.9 million, or 30.4%, in fiscal 2007. The year-over-year movement in foreign exchange rates resulted in a net 
favorable translation effect on sales of $7.5 million in fiscal 2007, compared to fiscal 2006. 

In fiscal 2007, sales for our worldwide manufacturing operations, before eliminating intra-segment and inter-segment sales, were 
$61.9 million, or 27.3%, higher than in the prior fiscal year. Year-over-year changes in foreign exchange rates had a net favorable impact 
on sales of $4.9 million. The BCS Group manufacturing operations, acquired at the end of the prior fiscal year, contributed $21.9 million 
to fiscal 2007’s net sales. The majority of the net remaining increase of $35.1 million came at our domestic manufacturing operation, 
which saw continued growth across most of its product markets. Particular strength was experienced in the off-highway transmission 
business, where the Company’s products are used in the oil field servicing market and various military vehicle applications, as well as 
in the commercial marine transmission business. 

Net sales for distribution operations were up $20.9 million, or 26.9%, in fiscal 2007. Year-over-year changes in foreign exchange rates 
had a net favorable impact on sales of $2.6 million. Vetus Italia Srl, one of the BCS Group acquired companies, contributed $12.1 million 
of the increase. Of the remaining net increase of $6.2 million, more than half of the increase came from the Company’s distribution 
operations in Asia, where the Company continued to see strong demand for its commercial marine transmission products. 

Net sales for the Company’s three major product markets, marine and propulsion, off-highway transmissions, and industrial, were up 
39%, 37% and 5%, respectively, versus fiscal 2006 sales levels. The net increase for marine and propulsion includes the impact of the 
BCS Group acquisition, which accounts for nearly two-thirds of the year-over-year increase. These net year-over-year increases are 
before considering the net favorable foreign currency translation effect noted above. Growth in the marine and propulsion market was 
driven primarily by the BCS Group acquisition, increased commercial marine transmission sales as well as increased sales of Arneson 
Surface Drives and custom Rolla propellers. In the off-highway transmission market, the year-over-year improvement can be attributed 
primarily to increased sales in oil field and military markets. The growth experienced in the Company’s industrial products was also  
due in part to the increased activity related to oil field markets as well as increased sales into the agriculture, mining and general 
industrial markets. 
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The elimination for net intra-segment and inter-segment sales increased $8.9 million, or 14.5%, from $61.0 million in fiscal 2006 to 
$69.9 million in fiscal 2007.  

Gross Profit
In fiscal 2007, gross profit increased $28.5 million, or over 38%, to $102.9 million. About a third of the year-over-year increase can be 
attributed to the impact of the BCS Group companies that were acquired at the end of fiscal 2006. Nearly half of the overall increase 
was due to improved profitability, volume and mix experienced in the Company’s off-highway transmission products, in particular for 
military and oil field-related transmissions. 

Gross profit as a percentage of sales improved 180 basis points in fiscal 2007 to 32.4%, compared to 30.6% in fiscal 2006. There were 
a number of factors that impacted the Company’s overall gross margin rate in fiscal 2007. For the year, profitability continued to 
improve from higher sales volumes, the implementation of cost reduction and outsourcing programs, manufacturing efficiencies, a 
better product mix and selective price increases. The Company’s margins continued to be impacted by rising steel, energy and medical 
costs. In addition, the Company’s Belgian operation’s gross margin was unfavorably affected by the continued relative strength of the 
Euro versus the U.S. Dollar, when compared to the average rate in fiscal 2006. This operation manufactures with Euro-based costs 
and sells more than a third of its production into the U.S. market at U.S. Dollar prices. The average Euro to U.S. Dollar exchange rate, 
computed monthly, in fiscal 2007 was $1.31, which was 7.6% higher than in fiscal 2006. It is estimated that the year-over-year effect 
of a stronger Euro, on average, was to deteriorate margins at our Belgian subsidiary by nearly $1.4 million. Fiscal 2007’s gross profit 
included unfavorable non-cash, non-recurring purchase accounting adjustments to inventory at the recently acquired BCS Group 
companies of $1.2 million, pre-tax. The adjustment reduced gross profit by nearly 40 basis points in fiscal 2007. These adverse effects 
were more than offset by (1) increased sales and improved product mix, particularly from the domestic industrial and off-highway 
transmission markets, (2) selective pricing actions, (3) improvements achieved through the Company’s outsourcing and cost reduction 
programs, and (4) lower domestic pension and postretirement healthcare costs of approximately $1.2 million. The year-over-year 
movement in foreign exchange rates, primarily driven by movements in the Euro, resulted in a net favorable translation effect on gross 
profit of $2.3 million in fiscal 2007, compared to fiscal 2006. 

Marketing, Engineering and Administrative (ME&A) Expenses
Marketing, engineering, and administrative (ME&A) expenses increased $13.7 million, or 27.5%, in fiscal 2007 versus fiscal 2006. As 
a percentage of sales, ME&A expenses decreased by 50 basis points to 19.9% in fiscal 2007, compared to 20.4% in fiscal 2006. The 
BCS Group companies, acquired at the end of fiscal 2006, added $6.1 million of ME&A expenses in fiscal 2007, or 45% of the overall 
increase experienced. Of the remaining $7.6 million increase, the following items account for the majority of the year-over-year 
increase: (1) a $2.2 million increase in stock-based compensation expense, (2) a $0.6 million write-off of an impaired intangible asset 
and (3) an increase of over $1 million in total bonus expense as a result of the improved financial performance year-over-year. In 
addition, year-over-year changes in foreign exchange rates had a net translation effect of increasing ME&A expenses by $1.1 million. 
The majority of the remaining net increase of $3.8 million, or 7.7%, relates to general increases experienced in salaries and wages, 
marketing and engineering expenses as well as the costs associated with the implementation of a new global ERP system.

Restructuring of Operations
The Company recorded a restructuring charge of $2.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2007 as the Company restructured its Belgian 
operation to improve future profitability. The charge consists of prepension costs for 32 employees; 29 manufacturing employees and 
3 salaried employees. As of June 30, 2007, the Company had not made any cash payments related to the above restructuring. The 
action was taken to allow the Belgian operation to focus resources on core manufacturing processes, while allowing for savings on the 
outsourcing of non-core processes. This decision is part of the Company’s ongoing commitment to improve the overall cost structure 
through the outsourcing of non-core production processes to low cost suppliers and regions. This project will result in outsourcing 
roughly 20% of the Belgian facility’s machining hours, leaving only core machining, assembly and test processes. The Company has 
already completed extensive outsourcing of non-core domestic production to low cost countries, and has recently established a 
branch office in India to accelerate the cost reduction efforts. The Company estimates annual pre-tax savings upon completion of this 
project of approximately $1.0-$1.2 million.

Interest Expense
Interest expense increased by $1.4 million, or 83.6%, in fiscal 2007. The majority ($1.2 million) of the increase relates to the impact of a 
full year of interest expense from the Company’s $25 million Senior Notes, which carry an interest rate of 6.05%. Total interest on the 
Company’s $35 million revolving credit facility increased nearly $0.6 million. This increase can be attributed to an overall increase in 
the average borrowings year-over-year as well as an increase in the interest rate on the revolver year-over-year. The average borrowing 
on the revolver, computed monthly, increased to $18.9 million in fiscal 2007, compared to $13.7 million in fiscal 2006. The interest rate 
on the revolver increased from a range of 4.59% to 6.13% in fiscal 2006 to a range of 6.13% to 6.60% in fiscal 2007. The net remaining 
decrease of $0.4 million was due to lower borrowings at the Company’s foreign subsidiaries as well as the payoff of the $20 million of 
Senior Notes that matured in June 2006.

Income Taxes
In fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Company’s effective tax rate approximated 35.8% and 36.7%, respectively. The decrease in the effective 
tax rate in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to a $1.2 million research and development (“R&D”) credit recorded primarily in the fourth 
quarter. This tax benefit was recorded upon the completion of a study the Company conducted on its R&D expenditures from 2003  
to 2007. 
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Order Rates
In fiscal 2007, we continued to see an improvement in our order rates for most of our products. The backlog of orders scheduled for 
shipment during the next six months (six-month backlog) of $110.4 million at the end of fiscal 2007, including $10.9 million from the 
recently acquired BCS Group companies, compared favorably to the $91.6 million and $64.8 million for fiscal years ended 2006 and 
2005, respectively. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Fiscal Years 2008, 2007 and 2006

The net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2008 totaled $19.7 million, an increase of $2.2 million, or 13%, versus fiscal 2007.  
The net increase was driven primarily by a net increase in earnings of $2.4 million partially offset by increases in working capital, 
primarily inventories, and a decrease in accrued retirement benefits. The increase in inventory came primarily at the Company’s 
European manufacturing operations and distribution operations in the Pacific Basin.

The net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2007 totaled $17.5 million, a decrease of $0.8 million, or 4%, versus fiscal 2006. 
The net decrease was primarily driven by a net increase in earnings of $7.4 million offset by increases in working capital, primarily 
accounts receivable and inventories, and a reduction in accrued retirement benefits as a result of nearly $8 million in domestic pension 
contributions that were made in the first half of fiscal 2007. The increases in inventories and accounts receivable were consistent with 
the increased sales growth and order activity experienced by the Company in its fourth fiscal quarter. Fourth quarter sales increased 
over 25% while the six-month backlog increased over 21% as of June 30, 2007 versus the end of the prior fiscal year. This compares to 
increases in accounts receivable and inventories of 13% and 17%, respectively, before the effect of foreign currency translation.   

The net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2006 totaled $18.3 million, an increase of $5.3 million, or 41%, versus fiscal 2005. 
The increase was primarily driven by a net increase in earnings of $7.5 million and accrued liabilities of $7.3 million, offset by increases 
in inventories of $6.9 million and accounts receivable of $4.2 million. These net changes exclude the net impact of foreign currency 
translation and the BCS Group acquisition discussed in Note Q of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The increases in 
inventories and accounts receivable were consistent with the increased sales growth and order activity experienced by the Company 
in its fourth fiscal quarter. Fourth quarter sales increased over 17% while the six-month backlog increased over 40% as of June 30, 
2006, versus the end of the prior fiscal year. This compares to increases in accounts receivable and inventories of 11% and 14%, 
respectively, before the effect of foreign currency translation and the impact of the BCS Group acquisition.   

The net cash used for investing activities in fiscal 2008 consisted primarily of capital expenditures for machinery and equipment at 
our domestic and Belgian manufacturing operations, and the continuation of the implementation of a new ERP system started in 
fiscal 2007 at our domestic manufacturing location in Racine. In fiscal 2009, the Company expects to complete the majority of the 
remaining ERP implementation work for its foreign manufacturing and distribution operations. The software costs associated with the 
new ERP have been substantially paid for and capitalized as appropriate in fiscal years 2007 and 2008. 

The net cash used for investing activities in fiscal 2007 consisted primarily of capital expenditures for machinery and equipment, 
facilities renovations and the implementation of a new ERP system at our domestic manufacturing location in Racine as well as 
machinery and equipment purchases at our European manufacturing operations.

The net cash used for investing activities in fiscal 2006 consisted primarily of the net acquisition cost, net of cash acquired, for the 
BCS Group acquisition (discussed in Note Q of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements) as well as capital expenditures for 
machinery, equipment and facilities renovations at our North American and European manufacturing operations. 

In fiscal 2008, the net cash used by financing activities consisted primarily of the purchase of shares of the Company’s outstanding 
common stock under a Board authorized stock repurchase program. In the first and third fiscal quarters of 2008, the Company 
repurchased a total of 660,000 shares of its outstanding common stock at an average price of $23.70 per share, for a total of $15.6 
million. In addition, the Company paid $3.0 million in dividends to its shareholders, a 25% increase over fiscal 2007. These were offset 
by over $5 million in additional borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility.

In fiscal 2007, the net cash used by financing activities consisted primarily of an increase of $5.5 million in the year-end borrowings 
under the Company’s revolving credit facility offset by a reduction in the prior fiscal year’s $3.2 million bank overdraft and the payment 
of dividends of nearly $2.4 million.   

In fiscal 2006, the net cash provided by financing activities consisted primarily of the net proceeds of a $25 million private placement 
of Senior Notes that was finalized in April 2006 (see Note G of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements) offset by a net 
decrease in the Company’s revolving credit facility of $4.5 million and the payment of $2.1 million in dividends to shareholders. 

Future Liquidity and Capital Resources
During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company’s December 19, 2002, revolving loan agreement with M&I Marshall & Ilsley Bank 
(“M&I”) was amended, increasing the limit from $20,000,000 to $35,000,000 and extending the term by two years to October 31, 
2007. The agreement was further amended in the first quarter of fiscal 2007 to extend the term by an additional two years to October 
31, 2009. Additionally, certain capital expenditure restrictions were increased. An additional amendment was agreed to in the first 
quarter of fiscal 2008 to extend the term by an additional year to October 31, 2010, and eliminate the covenants limiting capital 
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expenditures and restricted payments (dividend payments and stock repurchases). This credit facility is used to fund seasonal working 
capital requirements and other financing needs. This facility and Twin Disc’s other indebtedness contain certain restrictive covenants 
as are fully disclosed in Note G of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. As of June 30, 2008, the Company was in 
compliance with these covenants.

On April 10, 2006, the Company entered into a Note Agreement (the “Note Agreement”) with Prudential Insurance Company of 
America and certain other entities (collectively, “Purchasers”). Pursuant to the Note Agreement, Purchasers acquired, in the aggregate, 
$25,000,000 in 6.05% Senior Notes (the “Notes”) due April 10, 2016 (the “Payment Date”). The Notes mature and become due and 
payable in full on April 10, 2016. Prior to the Payment Date, the Company is obligated to make quarterly payments of interest during 
the term of the Notes, plus prepayments of principal of $3,571,429 on April 10 of each year from 2010 to 2015, inclusive. As a condition 
to the issuance of the Notes, the Company’s revolving loan agreement with M&I (discussed above) was amended to provide that M&I 
consented to the Company entering into the Note Agreement. In the first quarter of fiscal 2008, the Note Agreement was amended to 
eliminate the covenants limiting capital expenditures and restricted payments (dividend payments and stock repurchases). 

The overall liquidity of the Company remains strong. The Company had $15.3 million of available borrowings on our $35 million 
revolving loan agreement as of June 30, 2008, and continues to generate enough cash from operations to meet our operating and 
investing needs. As of June 30, 2008, the Company also had cash and cash equivalents of over $14.4 million, primarily at its overseas 
operations. These funds, with limited restrictions, are available for repatriation as deemed necessary by the Company. In fiscal 2009, 
the Company does not expect to make any contributions to its domestic pension plans, as no minimum contributions are expected 
to be required. However, if the Company elects to make voluntary contributions in fiscal 2009, it intends to do so using cash from 
operations and, if necessary, from available borrowings under existing credit facilities. 

Net working capital increased approximately $13 million in fiscal 2008, and the current ratio remained flat at 2.2 at June 30, 2007 
and June 30, 2008, respectively. The increase in net working capital was primarily driven by an increase in inventories, primarily at 
the Company’s European manufacturing locations and distribution operations in the Pacific Basin, offset by an increase in accounts 
payable. The Company’s balance sheet is strong, there are no off-balance sheet arrangements, and we continue to have sufficient 
liquidity for near-term needs. 

Twin Disc expects capital expenditures to be between $15 and $17 million in fiscal 2009. These anticipated expenditures reflect the 
Company’s plans to continue investing in modern equipment and facilities, a global ERP system and new products.

Management believes that available cash, the credit facility, cash generated from future operations, existing lines of credit and access 
to debt markets will be adequate to fund Twin Disc’s capital requirements for the foreseeable future. 

 

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations
The Company had no off balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2008 and 2007. 

The Company has obligations under non-cancelable operating lease contracts and loan and senior note agreements for certain future 
payments. A summary of those commitments follows (in thousands):

  	 Less than	 1–3 	 3–5 	 After  
 Contractual Obligations Total	 1 Year	 Years	 Years	 5 Years

 Revolving loan borrowing	 $  19,700	 —	 $19,700	 —	 — 
 Long-term debt	 $ 29,247	 $   720	 $   8,759	 $8,927	 $10,841 
 Operating leases	 $  12,992	 $3,250	 $    5,812	 $3,637	 $     293

The Company believes the capital resources available in the form of existing cash, lines of credit (see Note G of the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements), and funds provided by operations will be adequate to meet anticipated capital expenditures and 
other foreseeable future business requirements, including pension funding requirements. As noted above, the Company’s revolving 
loan agreement was amended during the first quarter of fiscal 2005, increasing the limit from $20 million to $35 million and extending 
the term by two years to October 31, 2007. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the term was extended by an additional two years to 
October 31, 2009. The term was then extended an additional year to October 31, 2010, in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. As of June 30, 
2008, there was $15.3 million of available borrowings under the revolver. In addition, the Company entered into a $25 million Senior 
Note in April 2006. The acquisition of the BCS Group companies in May 2006 was financed with $22.7 million of the proceeds from 
this private debt placement. In addition, the Company has $14.4 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand as of June 30, 2008.

Other Matters

Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of this Annual Report requires management’s judgment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ 
from those estimates.
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The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in Note A to the consolidated financial statements. Not all of these 
significant accounting policies require management to make difficult, subjective, or complex judgments or estimates. However, the 
policies management considers most critical to understanding and evaluating our reported financial results are the following:

Revenue Recognition
Twin Disc recognizes revenue from product sales at the time of shipment and passage of title. While we respect the customer’s right 
to return products that were shipped in error, historical experience shows those types of adjustments have been immaterial and thus 
no provision is made. With respect to other revenue recognition issues, management has concluded that its policies are appropriate 
and in accordance with the guidance provided by the Securities and Exchange Commissions’ Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, 
“Revenue Recognition.”

Accounts Receivable
Twin Disc performs ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the customer’s 
credit-worthiness as determined by review of current credit information. We continuously monitor collections and payments from 
our customers and maintain a provision for estimated credit losses based upon our historical experience and any specific customer-
collection issues. In addition, senior management reviews the accounts receivable aging on a monthly basis to determine if any 
receivable balances may be uncollectible. Although our accounts receivable are dispersed among a large customer base, a significant 
change in the liquidity or financial position of any one of our largest customers could have a material adverse impact on the 
collectibility of our accounts receivable and future operating results. 

Inventory
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost has been determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for the majority 
of the inventories located in the United States, and by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method for all other inventories. Management 
specifically identifies obsolete products and analyzes historical usage, forecasted production based on future orders, demand 
forecasts, and economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the reserve for excess and obsolete inventory. The adjustments to 
the reserve are estimates that could vary significantly, either favorably or unfavorably, from the actual requirements if future economic 
conditions, customer demand or competitive conditions differ from expectations. 

Warranty
Twin Disc engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of 
its suppliers. However, its warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, the extent of the market affected by the failure and 
the expense involved in satisfactorily addressing the situation. The warranty reserve is established based on our best estimate of the 
amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet date. When evaluating the adequacy 
of the reserve for warranty costs, management takes into consideration the term of the warranty coverage, historical claim rates 
and costs of repair, knowledge of the type and volume of new products and economic trends. While we believe the warranty reserve 
is adequate and that the judgment applied is appropriate, such amounts estimated to be due and payable in the future could differ 
materially from what actually transpires.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
The Company provides a wide range of benefits to employees and retired employees, including pensions and postretirement health 
care coverage. Plan assets and obligations are recorded annually based on the Company’s measurement date utilizing various actuarial 
assumptions such as discount rates, expected return on plan assets, compensation increases, retirement and mortality tables, and 
healthcare cost trend rates as of that date. The approach used to determine the annual assumptions are as follows:

	� Discount rate – based on Moody’s AA Corporate Bond rate, with appropriate consideration of pension plans’ participants’  
demographics and benefit payment terms.

	� Expected Return on Plan Assets – based on the expected long-term average rate of return on assets in the pension funds, which is 
reflective of the current and projected asset mix of the funds and considers historical returns earned on the funds. 

	 Compensation Increase – reflect the long-term actual experience, the near-term outlook and assumed inflation.

	� Retirement and Mortality Rates – based upon the Generational Mortality Table for fiscal 2008 and the UP 1994 Mortality Table for 
all prior years presented.

	� Healthcare Cost Trend Rates – developed based upon historical cost data, near-term outlook and an assessment of likely  
long-term trends.

Measurements of net periodic benefit cost are based on the assumptions used for the previous year-end measurements of assets and 
obligations. The Company reviews its actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and makes modifications to the assumptions when 
appropriate. As required by U.S. GAAP, the effects of the modifications are recorded currently or amortized over future periods. Based 
on information provided by its independent actuaries and other relevant sources, the Company believes that the assumptions used are 
reasonable; however, changes in these assumptions could impact the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of 
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences 
are expected to be recovered or settled. The Company’s policy is to remit earnings from foreign subsidiaries only to the extent any 
resultant foreign taxes are creditable in the United States. Accordingly, the Company does not currently provide for additional United 
States and foreign income taxes which would become payable upon repatriation of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets.” This FSP amends the factors that 
should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible 
asset under SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The intent of this FSP is to improve the consistency between the 
useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the 
asset under SFAS No. 141(R), and other U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements 
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. This FSP is not expected to 
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In March 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) 
No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” This statement is intended to improve financial reporting by 
identifying a consistent framework, or hierarchy, for selecting accounting principles to be used in preparing financial statements 
that are presented in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for nongovernmental entities. SFAS No. 162 is 
effective 60 days following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, 
“The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” SFAS No. 162 is not expected to have 
a material impact on the Company’s financial statements, as the FASB does not expect that this Statement will result in a change in 
current practice.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities – An Amendment of 
FASB Statement No. 133.” This statement enhances the disclosures regarding derivatives and hedging activities by requiring:

– Disclosure of the objectives for using derivative instruments be disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting designation; 
– Disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a tabular format; 
– Disclosure of information about credit-risk-related contingent features; and 
– Cross-reference from the derivative footnote to other footnotes in which derivative-related information is disclosed.

SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. Adoption of SFAS No. 161 is not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (Revised), “Business Combinations.” This statement will significantly change the 
accounting for business combinations, requiring the acquiring entity to recognize the acquired assets and liabilities at the acquisition 
date fair value with limited exceptions. The statement also includes a substantial number of new disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 
141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual 
report period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, the Company will be subject to 
SFAS No. 141(R) beginning on July 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements – An Amendment 
of ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and 
for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary, and includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its 
noncontrolling interest. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after 
December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. Adoption of SFAS No. 160 is not expected to have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the Company.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an 
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” This standard permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain 
other items at fair value. This statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 
2007, and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair value, establishes 
a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements. On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 157-2 which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 
for one year, for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually).  FAS 157 and FSP 157-2 are effective for financial statements issued for 
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of  
the Company.
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During June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation 
of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a 
tax return should be recorded in the financial statements by standardizing the level of confidence needed to recognize uncertain 
tax benefits and the process for measuring the amount of benefit to recognize. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, 
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The Company adopted the provisions of 
FIN 48 as of July 1, 2007, with no material impact to the Company’s financial statements.

In September 2006 and March 2007, respectively, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 06-4, “Accounting for 
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” and Issue No. 
06-10, “Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.” These EITFs address the possible recognition 
of a liability and related compensation costs for split-dollar life insurance policies that provide a benefit to an employee that extends to 
postretirement periods. EITF 06-4 and 06-10 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, including interim periods 
within those years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact these EITFs may have on the Company’s financial statements.

Item 7(a). Quantitative and qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk
The Company is exposed to market risks from changes in interest rates, commodities and foreign exchange. To reduce such risks, the 
Company selectively uses financial instruments and other pro-active management techniques. All hedging transactions are authorized 
and executed pursuant to clearly defined policies and procedures, which prohibit the use of financial instruments for trading or 
speculative purposes. Discussion of the Company’s accounting policies and further disclosure relating to financial instruments is 
included in Note A to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest rate risk – The Company’s earnings exposure related to adverse movements of interest rates is primarily derived from 
outstanding floating rate debt instruments that are indexed to the prime and LIBOR interest rates. During fiscal 2003, the Company 
entered into a $20 million revolving loan agreement, which was due to expire on October 31, 2005. During fiscal 2005, the revolving 
credit commitment of the agreement was increased to $35 million and the termination date of the agreement was extended to  
October 31, 2007. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the term was extended by an additional two years to October 31, 2009.  
During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, the term was extended an additional year to October 31, 2010. In accordance with the loan 
agreement, the Company has the option of borrowing at the prime interest rate or LIBOR plus an additional “Add-On,” between 1% 
and 2.75%, depending on the Company’s Total Funded Debt to EBITDA ratio. Due to the relative stability of interest rates, the Company 
did not utilize any financial instruments at June 30, 2008 to manage interest rate risk exposure. A 10 percent increase or decrease in 
the applicable interest rate would result in a change in pretax interest expense of approximately $73,000.

Commodity price risk – The Company is exposed to fluctuation in market prices for such commodities as steel and aluminum. The 
Company does not utilize commodity price hedges to manage commodity price risk exposure. Direct material cost as a percent of total 
cost of goods sold was 61.4% for fiscal 2008.

Stock market risk – The Company’s earnings are exposed to stock market risk relative to the Performance Stock Unit Awards. These are 
cash based awards which are revalued at the end of each reporting period based upon the Company’s closing stock price as of the end of 
the period. A one dollar increase or decrease in the Company’s stock price would result in a decrease or increase, respectively, in earn-
ings from operations of approximately $154,000. These awards were valued at the Company’s June 30, 2008 closing stock price of $20.93.

Currency risk – The Company has exposure to foreign currency exchange fluctuations. Approximately forty eight percent of the  
Company’s revenues in the year ended June 30, 2008 were denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Of that total, 
 approximately sixty five percent was denominated in Euros with the balance comprised of Japanese Yen, Swiss Franc and the  
Australian and Singapore Dollars. The Company does not hedge the translation exposure represented by the net assets of its foreign 
subsidiaries. Foreign currency translation adjustments are recorded as a component of shareholders’ equity. Forward foreign exchange 
contracts are used to hedge the currency fluctuations on significant transactions denominated in foreign currencies. 

Derivative Financial Instruments – The Company has written policies and procedures that place all financial instruments under the 
direction of the Company corporate treasury department and restrict derivative transactions to those intended for hedging purposes. 
The use of financial instruments for trading purposes is prohibited. The Company uses financial instruments to manage the market risk 
from changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company primarily enters into forward exchange contracts to reduce the earnings and cash flow impact of non-functional  
currency denominated receivables and payables. These contracts are highly effective in hedging the cash flows attributable to  
changes in currency exchange rates. Gains and losses resulting from these contracts offset the foreign exchange gains or losses 
on the underlying assets and liabilities being hedged. The maturities of the forward exchange contracts generally coincide with the 
settlement dates of the related transactions. Gains and losses on these contracts are recorded in Other Income (Expense), net in the 
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income as the changes in the fair value of the contracts are recognized 
and generally offset the gains and losses on the hedged items in the same period. The primary currency to which the Company was 
exposed in fiscal 2008 and 2007 was the Euro. At June 30, 2008, the Company had net outstanding forward exchange contracts to  
purchase U.S. Dollars in the value of $752,000 with a weighted average maturity of 34 days. The fair value of the Company’s contracts 
was a gain of $8,000 at June 30, 2008. At June 30, 2007, the Company had net outstanding forward exchange contracts to purchase 
U.S. Dollars in the value of $765,000 with a weighted average maturity of 29 days. The fair value of the Company’s contracts was a 
minimal gain at June 30, 2007.  
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
See Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.

Sales and Earnings by Quarter – Unaudited (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
2008  1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr.	 Year  ________ ________ ________ ________	 ________
Net sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          . $73,613  $81,894  $85,838 	 $90,349  $331 ,694
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       . 23,851   25,346   26,627 	  29,044  104,868
Net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      .  5,106   4,209   7,929 	  7,008  24,252
Basic earnings per share. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                            . 0.44   0.37   0.71 	  0.63   2.15
Diluted earnings per share. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          . 0.44   0.37  0.70 	  0.62  2.13
Dividends per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                               . 0.0550 0.0700 0.0700 0.0700	 0.2650

2007  1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr.	 Year  ________ ________ ________ ________	 ________
Net sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          . $65,774  $74,239  $86,405 	 $90,782  $317,200
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       . 20,313   24,389   28,185 	  30,022  102,909
Net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      .  3,672   5,670   7,509 	  5,001  21,852
Basic earnings per share. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                            . 0.32   0.49   0.65 	  0.42   1.88
Diluted earnings per share. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          . 0.31   0.48   0.64 	  0.41   1.84
Dividends per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                               . 0.0475 0.0475 0.0550 0.0550	 0.2050

Item 9. Change in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 
Disclosure
None.

Item 9(a). Controls and procedures
Conclusion Regarding Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
As required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of the end of the period covered by this report and 
under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Of-
ficer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures. Based on 
such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures 
are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or sub-
mits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and  
Exchange Commission rules and forms, and to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Com-
pany in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, 
including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting  
principles. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) �pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of  
the Company,

(ii) �provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in  
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company, and

(iii) �provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the 
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures included in such controls may deteriorate.

The Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based upon the framework in 
Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based 
upon such evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2008.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008, as stated in their report which is 
included herein. 

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting 
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, there have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Item 9(b). Other Information
Not applicable.
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Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
For information with respect to the executive officers of the Registrant, see “Executive Officers of the Registrant” at the end of  
Part I of this report. 

For information with respect to the Directors of the Registrant, see “Election of Directors” in the Proxy Statement for the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which is incorporated into this report by reference. 

For information with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, see “Section 16(a) Beneficial 
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which 
is incorporated into this report by reference. 

For information with respect to the Company’s Code of Ethics, see “Guidelines for Business Conduct and Ethics” in the Proxy  
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which is incorporated into this report by reference. 
The Company’s Code of Ethics, entitled, “Guidelines for Business Conduct and Ethics,” is included on the Company’s web site,  
www.twindisc.com.

For information with respect to procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees to the Company’s Board of Directors, 
see “Selection of Nominees for the Board” in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 
2008, which is incorporated into this report by reference. There were no changes to these procedures since the Company’s last 
disclosure relating to these procedures.

For information with respect to the Audit Committee Financial Expert, see “Director Committee Functions: Audit Committee” in the 
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which is incorporated into this report  
by reference.

For information with respect to the Audit Committee Disclosure, see “Director Committee Functions: Audit Committee” in the Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which is incorporated into this report by reference.

For information with respect to the Audit Committee Membership, see “Director Committee Functions: Committee Membership”  
in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which is incorporated into this report  
by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information set forth under the captions “Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation” and “Compensation Committee 
Report,” in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on October 17, 2008, is incorporated into this report 
by reference. Discussion in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Compensation Committee Report” is incorporated by reference but 
shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” as part of this report.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
Security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is set forth in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held on October 17, 2008, under the caption “Principal Shareholders, Directors and Executive Officers” and 
incorporated into this report by reference.

There are no arrangements known to the Registrant, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control of 
the Registrant.

The following table summarizes certain information regarding the Company’s equity-based compensation plans as of the end of the 
most recently completed fiscal year:

 		  Number of securities to 	 Number of securities 
 		  be issued upon exercise Weighted average price	 remaining available 
 		  of outstanding options, of outstanding options,	 for future issuance under 
Plan Category	  	 warrants and rights warrants and rights	 equity compensation plans 		  __________________________ _________________________	 _____________________________

Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   	 206,200 $5.77	 467,408

Equity Compensation Plans
Not Approved by Shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .               	 0 N/A	 0 		  _________ ________	 _________
Total		  206,200 $5.77	 467,408 		  _________ ________	 _________ 		  _________ ________	 _________

PART  III
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, Director Independence
For information with respect to transactions with related persons and policies for the review, approval or ratification of such 
transactions, see “Corporate Governance – Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons” in the Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which is incorporated into this report by reference.

For information with respect to director independence, see “Corporate Governance – Board Independence” in the Proxy Statement for 
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, which is incorporated into this report by reference.

Item 14. Principal accounting fees and services
The Company incorporates by reference the information contained in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders to be held October 17, 2008, under the heading “Fees to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a)(1) Consolidated Financial Statements

See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule,” the Report of Independent  
Registered Public Accounting Firm and the Consolidated Financial Statements, all of which are incorporated by reference.

(a)(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule

See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule,” and the Consolidated Financial Statement 
Schedule, all of which are incorporated by reference.

(a)(3) Exhibits. See Exhibit Index included as the last page of this form, which is incorporated by reference.

PART  IV
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�INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                 38

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2008 and 2007  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                39
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    41

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the years 
	  ended June 30,  2008, 2007 and 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          42

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                           43–59

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Schedule II – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          60

Schedules, other than those listed, are omitted for the reason that they are inapplicable, are not required, or the information required 
is shown in the financial statements or the related notes.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

�To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Twin Disc, Incorporated:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Twin Disc, Incorporated and its subsidiaries at June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying 
index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated 
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of June 30, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial state-
ments and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of 
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial  
Reporting appearing under item 9(a). Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial state-
ment schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits (which were integrated 
audits in 2008 and 2007). We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether  
the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note M to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for employee 
pension benefits in 2007.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability  
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted  
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding  
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material  
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

�Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
September 12, 2008
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�TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2008 and 2007

 (in thousands, except per-share amounts)		  2008	  2007 		  _________	  _________
ASSETS
Current assets:
    Cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                 	 $  14,447	  $  19,508
    Trade accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                          	 67,611	  63,277
    Inventories, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                       	 97,691	  76,253
    Deferred income taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                	 6,297	     6,046
    Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                	 9,649	     8,156 		  _________	  _________
            Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                               	 195,695	   173,240

Property, plant and equipment, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       	  67,855	    56,810
Goodwill, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                           	 18,479	    17,171
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                   	  5,733	     3,956
Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                    	 9,589	     9,352
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 7,277	   6,655 		  _________	  _________
 		  $304,628	  $267,184 		  _________	  _________ 		  _________	  _________

LIABILITIES and SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
    Short-term borrowings and current maturities of long-term debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          	 $ 1,730	  $  1,768
    Accounts payable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     	 37,919	    28,896
    Accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     	 49,939	    49,254 		  _________	  _________
            Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            	 89,588	    79,918

Long-term debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                         	 48,227	    42,152
Accrued retirement benefits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                             	 34,325	    26,392
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                	 2,163	     2,640 		  _________	  _________
 		  174,303	   151,102

Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                        	 679	       645

Shareholders’ equity:
    Preferred shares authorized: 200,000;
        issued: none; no par value  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                 	 —	  —
    Common shares authorized: 30,000,000;
        issued: 13,099,468; no par value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      	 14,693	    13,304
    Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     	 142,361	   121,109
    Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)		  2,446 	    (4,493	) 		  _________	  _________
 		  159,500	    129,920
    Less treasury stock, at cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                             	 29,854	     14,483 		  _________	  _________ 
 (1,929,354 and 1,384,272 shares, respectively
            Total shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         	 129,646	    115,437 	 _________	  _________
 	 $304,628	   $267,184 	 _________	  _________ 	 _________	  _________

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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�TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED and SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006

 (In thousands, except per share data)		  2008	 2007		 2006 		  _________	 _________		 _________
Net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            	 $331,694	 $317,200		 $243,287
Cost of goods sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .	 226,826	 214,291		 168,897 		  _________	 _________		 _________
                Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .	  104,868	 102,909		 74,390
Marketing, engineering and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                    	 66,349	 63,267		 49,606
Restructuring of operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                           	 (373	) 2,652		 — 		  _________	 _________		 _________
                Earnings from operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    	 38,892	 36,990		 24,784	

Other income (expense):
    Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    	 501	 443		 302
    Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   	  (3,038	) (3,154	)	 (1,718	)
    Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         	 (1,107	) 50		 (316	) 		  _________	 _________		 _________
 		   (3,644	) (2,661	)	 (1,732	) 		  _________	 _________		 _________
 Earnings before income taxes and minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 	  35,248	 34,329		 23,052	

Income taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                        	 10,904	 12,273		 8,470 		  _________	 _________		 _________
                Earnings before minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                             	 24,344	 22,056		 14,582	

Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                     	 (92	) (204	)	 (129	)  		  _________	 _________		 _________
                Net earnings  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                               	 $  24,252	 $   21,852		 $   14,453	 		  _________	 _________		 _________ 		  _________	 _________		 _________

Earnings per share data:
    Basic earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                            	 $      2.15	 $       1.88		 $      1.26	
    Diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          	  2.13	 1.84		 1.22	

Weighted average shares outstanding data:
    Basic shares outstanding  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                           	  11,279	 11,622		 11,534
    Dilutive stock awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                               	   133	 258		 348 		  _________	 _________		 _________
    Diluted shares outstanding  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         	   11,412	 11,880		 11,882 		  _________	 _________		 _________ 		  _________	 _________		 _________
Comprehensive income:
    Net earnings  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      	 $  24,252	 $   21,852		 $   14,453
    Foreign currency translation adjustment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                             	 14,400	 4,714		 1,733
    Benefit plan adjustments, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       	 (7,461)	 19,752		 6,668 		  _________	 _________		 _________
     		  $    31,191	 $  46,318		 $  22,854 		  _________	 _________		 _________ 		  _________	 _________		 _________

 
The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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�TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED and SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006

 (In thousands)	  2008	 2007	 2006 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Cash flows from operating activities:
    Net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       $24,252	      $21,852	 $14,453	
    Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to
            net cash provided by operating activities:
        Depreciation and amortization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                     7,881	   7,252	   5,866
        Write-off of impaired intangible asset. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                               —	  600	  —
        Loss on sale of plant assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         468  71	     456
        Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 (72	) 73	     129
        Restructuring of operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                        (373	)  2,652	      —	
        Stock compensation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      1,301	    1,074	     784
        Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                        2,243	      (41	)    2,758 
        Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
            Trade accounts receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   1,795	   (5,325	)   (4,151	)	
            Inventories, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                (12,949	) (8,501	) (6,933	)
            Other assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    (1,127	) 142	 (1,883	)	
            Accounts payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                               5,491	     216	    2,209
            Accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                              (4,870	) 7,814	    7,318
            Accrued/prepaid retirement benefits. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                             (4,332	) (10,393	) (2,729	) 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Net cash provided by operating activities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                19,708	  17,486	   18,277 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Cash flows from investing activities:
    Proceeds from sale of plant assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    256	     114	     240
    Acquisitions of plant assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          (14,999	) (15,681	) (8,385	)
    Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          —	 —	 (20,330	) 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Net cash used by investing activities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    (14,743	) (15,567	) (28,475	) 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Cash flows from financing activities:
    Bank overdraft. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       —	 (3,194	) (562	)
    Increase (decrease) in notes payable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              226	  (701	)  21,518	
    Proceeds from (payments of) long-term debt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                           5,055	   5,525	   (4,500	)
    Proceeds from exercise of stock options. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  246	     273	    1,027
    Acquisition of treasury stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         (15,644	) (51	) (214	)
    Dividends paid. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      (3,000	) (2,395	) (2,117	)
    Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                              691      396	      (92	)	 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          (12,426	) (147	) 15,060	 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   2,400	    1,309	 (49	) 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Net change in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                (5,061	) 3,081	    4,813	
Cash and cash equivalents:
     Beginning of year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   19,508	   16,427	    11,614 	  ________	 ________	 ________
     End of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                        $14,447	 $19,508    $16,427 	  ________	 ________	 ________ 	  ________	 ________	 ________
Supplemental cash flow information:
    Cash paid during the year for:
        Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                          $  3,626	  $ 3,048	   $   1,391
        Income taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                     7,875	    9,361	     7,565

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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�TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED and SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands)

 		  Common		 Retained		 Accumulated Other		 Treasury 
 		  Stock 	 	 Earnings  	 Comprehensive Loss 		 Stock	   Total 		  ___________		 ___________		 _______________________		 __________	 ________
Balance at June 30, 2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       	 $11,072		  $89,316		  $(17,567	)	  $(15,922	)  $66,899	

Net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   	 —		 14,453		 —		 —	  14,453 
Cash dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	 —		 (2,117	)	 —		 —	  (2,117	) 
Translation adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         	 —		  —		  1,733	 	 —	  1,733 
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax . . .   	 —		 —		 6,668	 	 —	 6,668 
Compensation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          	 784		 —		 —	  	 —	   784 
Shares (acquired) issued, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                     	 (79	)	 —		 —		 892	  813 		  ___________		 ___________		 _______________________		 __________	 ________

Balance at June 30, 2006  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       	 11,777		  101,652		  (9,166	)	  (15,030	)  89,233	

Net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   	 —		 21,852		 —		 —	  21,852 
Cash dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	 —		 (2,395	)	 —		 —	  (2,395	) 
Translation adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         	 —		  —		 4,714	 	 —	  4,714 
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax . . .   	 —		 —		 19,752	 	 —	 19,752	 
Adoption of SFAS No. 158  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                        	 —		 —		 (19,793	)  	 —	   (19,793	) 
Compensation expense and windfall tax benefits . . .   	 1,852		 —		 —	  	 —	   1,852 
Shares (acquired) issued, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                     	 (325	)	 —		 —		 547	  222 		  ___________		 ___________		 _______________________		 __________	 ________

Balance at June 30, 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                       	  13,304		 121,109		 (4,493	)	 (14,483	) 115,437	

Net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                   	 —		 24,252		 —		 —	  24,252 
Cash dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	 —		 (3,000	)	 —		 —	  (3,000	) 
Translation adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         	 —		  —		  14,400	 	 —	   14,400 
Benefit plan adjustments, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              	 —		 —		 (7,461	) 	 —	 (7,461	) 
Compensation expense and windfall tax benefits . . .   	 3,126		 —		 —	  	 —	   3,126 
Shares (acquired) issued, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                     	 (1,737	)	 —		 —		 (15,371	) (17,108	) 		  ___________		 ___________		 _______________________		 __________	 ________
Balance at June 30, 2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 $14,693		 $142,361		 $2,446		 $(29,854	) $129,646 		  ___________		 ___________		 _______________________		 __________	 ________  		  ___________		 ___________		 _______________________		 __________	 ________

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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�TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial statements:

Consolidation Principles – The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Twin Disc, Incorporated and its wholly and  
partially owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries. Certain foreign subsidiaries are included based on fiscal years ending March 31 or 
May 31, to facilitate prompt reporting of consolidated accounts. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Translation of Foreign Currencies – The financial statements of the Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated using the current 
exchange rate for assets and liabilities and the weighted average exchange rate for the year for revenues and expenses. The resulting 
translation adjustments are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), which is included in share-
holders’ equity. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in earnings. Included in other income (expense) are 
foreign currency transaction losses of $1,208,000, $113,000 and $38,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Receivables – Trade accounts receivable are stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,219,000 and $922,000 at June 30, 
2008 and 2007, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on various factors including, the aging of the  
accounts receivable, the evaluation of the likelihood of success in collecting the receivable and historical write-off experience.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash, trade accounts  
receivable, accounts payable and notes payable approximate fair value because of the immediate short-term maturity of these financial 
instruments. The fair value of the Company’s 6.05% Senior Notes due April 10, 2016, was approximately $23,358,000 and $25,409,000 
at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. See Note G, “Debt” for the related book value of this debt instrument. 

Derivative Financial Instruments – The Company has written policies and procedures that place all financial instruments under the 
direction of the Company’s corporate treasury and restricts all derivative transactions to those intended for hedging purposes. The use 
of financial instruments for trading purposes is prohibited. The Company uses financial instruments to manage the market risk from 
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company primarily enters into forward exchange contracts to reduce the earnings and cash flow impact of non-functional  
currency denominated receivables and payables. These contracts are highly effective in hedging the cash flows attributable to changes 
in currency exchange rates. Gains and losses resulting from these contracts offset the foreign exchange gains or losses on the  
underlying assets and liabilities being hedged. The maturities of the forward exchange contracts generally coincide with the settle-
ment dates of the related transactions. Gains and losses on these contracts are recorded in other income (expense), net as the 
changes in the fair value of the contracts are recognized and generally offset the gains and losses on the hedged items in the same 
period. The primary currency to which the Company was exposed in 2008 and 2007 was the Euro. At June 30, 2008, the Company had 
net outstanding forward exchange contracts to purchase U.S. Dollars in the value of $752,000 with a weighted average maturity of 34 
days. The fair value of the Company’s contracts was a gain of $8,000 at June 30, 2008. At June 30, 2007, the Company had net  
outstanding forward exchange contracts to purchase U.S. Dollars in the value of $765,008 with a weighted average maturity of 29  
days. The fair value of the Company’s contracts was a minimal gain at June 30, 2007.   

Inventories – Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost has been determined by the last‑in, first‑out (LIFO) method  
for the majority of inventories located in the United States, and by the first‑in, first‑out (FIFO) method for all other inventories.  
Management specifically identifies obsolete products and analyzes historical usage, forecasted production based on future orders, 
demand forecasts, and economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of the reserve for excess and obsolete inventory.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation – Assets are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor renewals 
are charged against earnings as incurred. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments are capitalized and depreciated.  
Depreciation is provided on the straight‑line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets for financial reporting and on  
accelerated methods for income tax purposes. The lives assigned to buildings and related improvements range from 10 to 40 years, 
and the lives assigned to machinery and equipment range from 5 to 15 years. Upon disposal of property, plant and equipment, the cost 
of the asset and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in 
earnings. Fully depreciated assets are not removed from the accounts until physically disposed.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets – The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in business 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-lived Assets.” For property, plant and equipment and 
other long-lived assets, excluding indefinite lived intangible assets, the Company performs undiscounted operating cash flow analyses to 
determine if an impairment exists. If an impairment is determined to exist, any related impairment loss is calculated based on fair value.

Revenue Recognition – Revenue is recognized by the Company when all of the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an  
arrangement exists; delivery has occurred and ownership has transferred to the customer; the price to the customer is fixed or  
determinable; and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognized at the time product is shipped to the customer, except 
for certain domestic shipments to overseas customers where revenue is recognized upon receipt by the customer.
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles – Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and more frequently if an event occurs which 
indicates the goodwill may be impaired in accordance with the SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Impairment of 
goodwill is measured according to a two step approach. In the first step, the fair value of a reporting unit, as defined by the statement, 
is compared to the carrying value of the reporting unit, including goodwill. The fair value is primarily determined using discounted 
cash flow analyses, however, other methods may be used to substantiate the discounted cash flow analyses, including third party valu-
ations when necessary. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed 
to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. In the second step the implied value of the goodwill is estimated as the fair 
value of the reporting unit less the fair value of all other tangible and identifiable intangible assets of the reporting unit. If the car-
rying amount of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to 
that excess, not to exceed the carrying amount of the goodwill. The Company’s other intangible assets with indefinite lives, including 
trademarks and tradenames, are not amortized, but are reviewed annually for possible impairment. The Company’s other intangible 
assets with defined lives are subject to amortization and are also reviewed annually for possible impairment.

Warranty – The Company warrants all assembled products and parts (except component products or parts on which written warran-
ties are issued by the respective manufacturers thereof and are furnished to the original customer, as to which the Company makes 
no warranty and assumes no liability) against defective materials or workmanship. Such warranty generally extends from periods 
ranging from 12 months to 24 months.

The Company engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality 
of its suppliers. However, its warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, the extent of the market affected by the failure 
and the expense involved in satisfactorily addressing the situation. The warranty reserve is established based on the Company’s best 
estimate of the amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet date. When evaluating 
the adequacy of the reserve for warranty costs, management takes into consideration the term of the warranty coverage, historical 
claim rates and costs of repair, knowledge of the type and volume of new products and economic trends. While the Company believes 
the warranty reserve is adequate and that the judgment applied is appropriate, such amounts estimated to be due and payable in the 
future could differ materially from what actually transpires.

Deferred Taxes – The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future income tax consequences of events 
that have been recognized in the Company’s financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined 
based on the temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities using 
enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which temporary differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are provided for 
deferred tax assets where it is considered more likely than not that the Company will not realize the benefit of such assets.

Stock-Based Compensation – At June 30, 2008, the Company has two stock-based compensation plans, which are described more fully 
in Note K, “Stock-Based Compensation.” The Company accounts for these plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of 
SFAS No. 123(R), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” 

Management Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of  
contingent liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the report-
ing periods. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs – The Company records revenue from shipping and handling costs in net sales. The cost associ-
ated with shipping and handling of products is reflected in cost of sales.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets.” This FSP amends the factors that 
should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible 
asset under SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The intent of this FSP is to improve the consistency between the 
useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the 
asset under SFAS No. 141(R), and other U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements 
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. This FSP is not expected to 
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In March 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles.” This statement is intended to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or hierarchy, 
for selecting accounting principles to be used in preparing financial statements that are presented in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles for nongovernmental entities. SFAS No. 162 is effective 60 days following the SEC’s approval of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” SFAS No. 162 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements, as the FASB does not expect that this Statement will result in a change in current practice.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities – An Amendment  
of FASB Statement No. 133.” This statement enhances the disclosures regarding derivatives and hedging activities by requiring:

– �Disclosure of the objectives for using derivative instruments be disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting 
designation;

– �Disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a tabular format;
– �Disclosure of information about credit-risk-related contingent features; and
– �Cross-reference from the derivative footnote to other footnotes in which derivative-related information is disclosed.

SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. Adoption of SFAS No. 161 is not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (Revised), “Business Combinations.” This statement will significantly change the 
accounting for business combinations, requiring the acquiring entity to recognize the acquired assets and liabilities at the acquisition 
date fair value with limited exceptions. The statement also includes a substantial number of new disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 
141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual 
report period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, the Company will be subject to 
SFAS No. 141(R) beginning on July 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements – An Amendment 
of ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and 
for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary, and includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its 
noncontrolling interest. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after 
December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is prohibited. Adoption of SFAS No. 160 is not expected to have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the Company.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an 
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” This standard permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain 
other items at fair value. This statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 
2007, and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair value, establishes a frame-
work for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.  
On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 157-2 which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year, for all 
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on 
a recurring basis (at least annually). FAS 157 and FSP 157-2 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after 
November 15, 2007, and are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

In September 2006 and March 2007, respectively, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 06-4, “Accounting for 
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” and Issue No. 
06-10, “Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.” These EITFs address the possible recognition 
of a liability and related compensation costs for split-dollar life insurance policies that provide a benefit to an employee that extends to 
postretirement periods. EITF 06-4 and 06-10 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, including interim periods 
within those years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact these EITFs may have on the Company’s financial statements.

During June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return 
should be recorded in the financial statements by standardizing the level of confidence needed to recognize uncertain tax benefits and 
the process for measuring the amount of benefit to recognize. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest 
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of July 1, 2007, 
with no material impact to the Company’s financial statements.

B. INVENTORIES
The major classes of inventories at June 30 were as follows (in thousands):
 	  2008 2007 	  ________ ________
Finished parts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            $58,316 $49,594
Work-in-process. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          20,755 13,011
Raw materials. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            18,620 13,648 	  ________ ________
 	  $97,691 $76,253 	  ________ ________  	  ________ ________ 

Inventories stated on a LIFO basis represent approximately 20% and 26% of total inventories at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
The approximate current cost of the LIFO inventories exceeded the LIFO cost by $23,467,000 and $21,837,000 at June 30, 2008 and 
2007, respectively. 
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C. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment at June 30 were as follows (in thousands):
 		  2008 2007 		  ________ ________
Land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                   	 $   4,136  $   3,755
Buildings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                               	  38,554 34,000
Machinery and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                               	 134,552 118,517 		  ________ ________
 		  177,242   156,272
Less accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           	 109,387 99,462 		  ________ ________ 
 		  $67,855 $56,810 		  _________ ________ 		  _________ ________

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $6,921,000, $6,331,000 and $5,529,000, respectively. 

D. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES
The Company performed impairment tests of its goodwill at June 30, 2008 and 2007 and determined that no impairment of  
goodwill existed. 

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, substantially all of which is allocated to the manufacturing segment, for the years 
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows (in thousands):

Balance at June 30, 2006. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                $15,304
Translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                 387
Acquisition accounting adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                      1,480	  ________
Balance at June 30, 2007. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                17,171
Translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                 1,308	  ________	

Balance at June 30, 2008. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                $18,479	  ________		  ________	

At June 30, the following acquired intangible assets have defined useful lives and are subject to amortization (in thousands):

Intangible assets with finite lives:		  2008	  2007		  ________	  ________
Licensing agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                   	 $3,015	  $ 3,015
Non-compete agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                               	 2,050	  2,050
Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                  	 5,991	  6,078		  ________	  ________
		  11,056	  11,143

Accumulated amortization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                               	 (5,176	) (4,303	)
Translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                  	 1,235	  368		  ________	  ________	
Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                   	 $7,115	  $7,208		  ________	  ________			  ________	  ________	

The weighted-average remaining useful life of the intangible assets included in the table above is approximately 10 years. 

Intangible amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was $960,000, $921,000 and $337,000, 
respectively. Estimated intangible amortization expense for each of the next five fiscal years is as follows (in thousands):

 Fiscal Year 
     2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                        $   986
     2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                        746
     2011. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                         746
     2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                        746
     2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                        698
     Thereafter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                   3,193 		   ________
 		   $7,115 	   ________ 	   ________	

The gross carrying amount of the Company’s intangible assets that have indefinite lives and are not subject to amortization as of  
June 30, 2008 and 2007 are $2,474,000 and $2,144,000, respectively. These assets are comprised of acquired tradenames.
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E. ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities at June 30 were as follows (in thousands):
 		  2008	  2007 		  ________	  ________
Salaries and wages . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                      	 $12,377	  $12,008
Retirement benefits. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     	 7,287      7,229
Warranty. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                               	 8,125       7,266
Customer advances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                      	 6,134	    2,055
Accrued income tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     	 1,911	    7,016
Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                  	 14,105      13,680 		  ________	  ________
 		  $49,939	  $49,254		  		  ________	  ________ 		  ________	  ________	
F. WARRANTY
The following is a listing of the activity in the warranty reserve during the years ended June 30 (in thousands): 

 		  2008	  2007 		  ________	  ________
Reserve balance, July 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                   	 $7,266	  $6,948
Current period expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                  	 4,759	    4,307
Payments or credits to customers. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         	  (4,502	)   (4,427	)	
Purchasing accounting adjustment (BCS). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                  	 —	  210		
Translation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                             	 602	  228	 		  ________	  ________
Reserve balance, June 30		  $8,125	  $7,266 		  ________	  ________ 		  ________	  ________

G. DEBT
Notes Payable
Notes payable consist of amounts borrowed under unsecured line of credit agreements. These lines of credit may be withdrawn at the 
option of the banks. The following is aggregate borrowing information at June 30 (in thousands):
 		  2008	  2007 		  ________	  ________
Available credit lines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                    	 $11,810   $9,118
Unused credit lines. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                      	 10,800	  9,118 		  ________	  _______
Outstanding credit lines. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                 	 1,010	  —
Notes payable – other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                   	 —	  — 		  ________	  ________
Total notes payable		  $ 1,010	  $    — 		  ________	  ________ 		  ________	  ________

Weighted-average interest rates on credit lines		  5.8%	  6.2%

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30 (in thousands):
 		  2008	  2007 		  ________	  ________
Revolving loan agreement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                               	 $19,700   $14,525
10-year unsecured senior notes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           	 25,000	  25,000
Secured long-term debt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                  	  1,343	   1,140
Capital lease obligations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                 	 212	  281
Other long-term debt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                    	 2,692	  2,974 		  ________	  ________
Subtotal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                                	 48,947	   43,920
Less: current maturities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                  	 (720	) (1,768	) 		  ________	  ________
Total long-term debt		  $48,227	  $42,152 		  ________	  ________ 		  ________	  ________

In December 2002, the Company entered into a $20,000,000 revolving loan agreement with M&I Marshall & Ilsley Bank (“M&I”), 
which had an original expiration date of October 31, 2005. In September 2004, the revolving loan agreement was amended to increase 
the commitment to $35,000,000 and the termination date of the agreement was extended to October 31, 2007. During the first 
quarter of fiscal 2007, the term was extended by an additional two years to October 31, 2009. An additional amendment was agreed 
to in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 to extend the term by an additional year to October 31, 2010, and eliminate the covenants limiting 
capital expenditures and restricted payments (dividend payments and stock repurchases).  This agreement contains certain covenants, 
including restrictions on investments, acquisitions and indebtedness. Financial covenants include a minimum consolidated net worth, 
minimum EBITDA of $11,000,000 at June 30, 2008, and a maximum total funded debt to EBITDA ratio of 2.5 at June 30, 2008.  
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As of June 30, 2008, the Company was in compliance with these covenants. The outstanding balance of $19,700,000 and $14,525,000 
at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, is classified as long-term debt. Borrowings under this agreement bear interest on a schedule 
determined by the Company’s leverage ratio and the LIBOR interest rate (LIBOR plus 1.25% at June 30, 2008 and 2007). The rate was 
3.708% and 6.570% at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

On April 10, 2006, the Company entered into a Note Agreement (the “Note Agreement”) with The Prudential Insurance Company of 
America and certain other entities (collectively, “Purchasers”). Pursuant to the Note Agreement, Purchasers acquired, in the aggregate, 
$25,000,000 in 6.05% Senior Notes due April 10, 2016 (the “Notes”).

The Notes mature and become due and payable in full on April 10, 2016 (the “Payment Date”). Prior to the Payment Date, the Company 
is obligated to make quarterly payments of interest during the term of the Notes, plus prepayments of principal of $3,571,429 on April 
10 of each year from 2010 to 2015, inclusive. The Company also has the option of making additional prepayments subject to certain 
limitations, including the payment of a Yield-Maintenance Amount as defined in the Note Agreement. In addition, the Company will be 
required to make an offer to purchase the Notes upon a Change of Control, and any such offer must include the payment of a Yield-
Maintenance Amount.

The Note Agreement includes certain financial covenants which are identical to those associated with the revolving loan agreement 
discussed above. The Note Agreement also includes certain restrictive covenants that limit, among other things, the incurrence of 
additional indebtedness and the disposition of assets outside the ordinary course of business. The Note Agreement provides that 
it shall automatically include any covenants or events of default not previously included in the Note Agreement to the extent such 
covenants or events of default are granted to any other lender of an amount in excess of $1,000,000. Following an Event of Default, 
each Purchaser may accelerate all amounts outstanding under the Notes held by such party.

As a condition to the issuance of the Notes, the Company entered into an amendment to its revolving loan agreement with M&I in 
which M&I consented to the Company entering into the Note Agreement.

The secured long term debt of $1,343,000 at June 30, 2008, represents a Rolla mortgage loan maturing in May 2013, carrying an 
interest rate of 4.00%. 

The aggregate scheduled maturities of outstanding long-term debt obligations in subsequent years are as follows (in thousands):

 Fiscal Year
     2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 $      720
     2010. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 4,410
     2011. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                             	 24,049
     2012. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 3,852
     2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 5,075
     Thereafter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                       	 10,841 			   ________
 			   $48,947 			   ________ 			   ________

H. LEASE COMMITMENTS
Approximate future minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

 Fiscal Year
     2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 $  3,250
     2010. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 3,199
     2011. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                             	 2,613
     2012. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 2,209
     2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	 1,428
     Thereafter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                       	 293 			   ________
 			   $12,992 			   ________ 			   ________

Total rent expense for operating leases approximated $4,259,000, $3,513,000 and $3,002,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and  
2006, respectively.

I. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
At June 30, 2008 and 2007, treasury stock consisted of 1,929,354 and 1,384,272 shares of common stock, respectively. The Company 
issued 113,898 shares of treasury stock in fiscal 2008 to fulfill its obligations under the stock option plans and restricted stock grants. 
The difference between the cost of treasury shares and the option price is recorded in common shares. 

In October 2007, the Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split of the Company’s outstanding common stock. The split was 
issued on December 31, 2007, to shareholders of record at the close of business on December 10, 2007. The split increased the number 
of shares outstanding to approximately 11.4 million from approximately 5.7 million. The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes 
thereto, including all share and per share data, have been restated as if the stock split had occurred as of the earliest period presented.
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On July 27, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to 200,000 shares of Common Stock at market values. This 
resolution superseded the resolution previously adopted by the Board in January 2002. On August 14, 2007, the Board of Directors 
authorized the purchase of an additional 200,000 shares of Common Stock at market values. On February 1, 2008, the Board of 
Directors authorized the purchase of an additional 500,000 shares of Common Stock at market values. In fiscal 2008, the Company 
repurchased 660,000 shares of its outstanding common stock at an average price of $23.70 per share at a total cost of $15,643,000. 
The Company purchased no shares of its outstanding common stock in fiscal 2007.

Cash dividends per share were $0.265, $0.205 and $0.1825 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively (on a post-split basis). 

In 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors established a Shareholder Rights Plan and distributed to shareholders one preferred stock 
purchase right for each outstanding share of common stock. Under certain circumstances, a right could be exercised to purchase one 
one‑hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $160, subject to certain anti‑dilution adjustments. 
The rights would become exercisable ten (10) days after a public announcement that a party or group has either acquired at least 15% 
(or at least 25% in the case of existing holders who currently own 15% or more of the common stock), or commenced a tender offer 
for at least 25% of the Company’s common stock. Generally, after the rights would become exercisable, if the Company were a party to 
certain merger or business combination transactions, or were to transfer 50% or more of its assets or earnings power, or certain other 
events were to occur, each right would entitle its holders, other than the acquiring person, to buy a number of shares of common 
stock of the Company, or of the other party to the transaction, having a value of twice the exercise price of the right. The rights expired 
June 30, 2008. 

Effective June 30, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors established a new Shareholder Rights Plan and distributed to shareholders 
one preferred stock purchase right (a “Right’) for each outstanding share of common stock. Under certain circumstances, a Right 
can be exercised to purchase one four‑hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $125, subject 
to certain anti‑dilution adjustments. The Rights will become exercisable on the earlier of: (i) ten (10) business days following a public 
announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons (an “Acquiring Person”) has acquired, or obtained the right to 
acquire from shareholders, beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding Company’s common stock (or 30% or more in the 
case of any person or group which currently owns 15% or more of the shares or who shall become the beneficial owner of 15% or more 
of the shares as a result of any transfer by reason of the death of or by gift from any other person who is an affiliate or an associate 
of such existing holder or by succeeding such a person as trustee of a trust existing on the Record Date (“Existing Holder”) or (ii) ten 
(10) business days following the commencement of a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in a person or group beneficially 
owning 15% or more of such outstanding Common Stock (or 30% or more for an Existing Holder), as such periods may be extended 
pursuant to the Rights Agreement. In the event that any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a Right shall 
thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise, in lieu of Preferred Stock, common stock of the Company having a value equal to 
two times the exercise price of the Right. However, Rights are not exercisable as described in this paragraph until such time as the 
Rights are no longer redeemable by the Company as set forth below. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, if any person becomes an 
Acquiring Person all Rights that are, or (under certain circumstances specified in the Rights Agreement) were, beneficially owned by an 
Acquiring Person will become null and void. 

The Rights will expire at the close of business on June 30, 2018, unless earlier redeemed or exchanged by the Company. At any time 
before a person becomes an Acquiring Person, the Company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of $.01 
per Right, appropriately adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend or similar transaction occurring after the date hereof. 
Immediately upon the action of the Board of Directors ordering redemption of the Rights, the Rights will terminate and the only right 
of the holders of Rights will be to receive the $.01 redemption price.

The Company is authorized to issue 200,000 shares of preferred stock, none of which have been issued. The Company has designated 
150,000 shares of the preferred stock for the purpose of the Shareholder Rights Plan.

J. BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND FOREIGN OPERATIONS
The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture and sale of marine and heavy duty off-highway power transmission 
equipment. Principal products include marine transmissions, surface drives, propellers and boat management systems, as well as 
power-shift transmissions, hydraulic torque converters, power take-offs, industrial clutches and controls systems. The Company 
sells to both domestic and foreign customers in a variety of market areas, principally pleasure craft, commercial and military marine 
markets, as well as energy and natural resources, government and industrial markets. 

The Company has two reportable segments: manufacturing and distribution. These segments are managed separately because each 
provides different services and requires different technology and marketing strategies. The accounting practices of the segments  
are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Transfers among segments are at established  
intercompany selling prices.
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Information about the Company’s segments is summarized as follows (in thousands):

                2008	  Manufacturing  Distribution		  Total 	  _________________ ______________		  ________
Net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            $298,978     $115,645   	 $414,623 
Intra-segment sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   29,701         9,651    	   39,352
Inter-segment sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   35,521         8,056    	   43,577
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      1,547  235     	    1,782
Interest expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      6,807  90    	    6,897
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         13,293         3,318   	   16,611
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         7,431       444  	    7,875
Segment earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    39,591         6,435   	   46,026
Segment assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       369,842        67,223   	  437,065
Expenditures for segment assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       13,878          1,121    	    14,999

                2007
Net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            $288,428    $98,619 		 $387,047 
Intra-segment sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   15,564   6,682 	 	 22,246
Inter-segment sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   42,649    4,952 	 	 47,601
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      643  205 	 	 848
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      5,082  89 		 5,171
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         15,067    3,220 	 	 18,287
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         6,831   414 	 	 7,245
Segment earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    31,630   5,776 	 	 37,406
Segment assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       318,983    58,501 	 	 377,484
Expenditures for segment assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       15,331  350 	 	 15,681

                2006
Net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            $226,540    $77,729 		 $304,269 
Intra-segment sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   10,167    3,632 	 	 13,799
Inter-segment sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   42,462    4,721 	 	 47,183
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      304  90 	 	 394
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      3,037  89 	 	 3,126
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         10,039    2,416 	 	 12,455
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         5,509   356 	 	 5,865
Segment earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    18,540    4,359 	 	 22,899
Segment assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       239,138    53,896 	 	 293,034
Expenditures for segment assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       8,098  287 	 	 8,385

The following is a reconciliation of reportable segment net sales, earnings and assets to the Company’s consolidated totals  
(in thousands):

 	  2008  2007		  2006 	  __________  _________		  _________
Net sales
    Total net sales from reportable segments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              $ 414,623       $387,047  	       $304,269
    Elimination of  intercompany sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                     (82,929 )  (69,847	)	  (60,982 )  	  __________  _________		  _________
         Total consolidated net sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       $ 331,694  $317,200	  	 $ 243,287  	  __________  _________		  _________ 	  __________  _________		  _________

Net earnings
    Total earnings from reportable segments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              $  46,026  $  37,406 		 $   22,899
    Other corporate expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                            (21,774 ) (15,554	)  	   (8,446 ) 	  __________  _________		  _________
    Total consolidated net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      $   24,252  $   21,852  	 $    14,453  	  __________  _________		  _________ 	  __________  _________		  _________

Assets
    Total assets for reportable segments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                  $ 437,065  $377,484 
    Elimination of  intercompany assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (114,664 ) (103,548	)
    Corporate assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    (17,773 )     (6,752	)  	 	  __________  _________
        Total consolidated assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          $304,628  $ 267,184  	  __________  _________ 	  __________  _________
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Other significant items:	  Segment  		  Consolidated
 	  Totals  Adjustments		  Totals                2008	  __________  _____________		  _____________
Interest income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       $1,782      $(1,281	)   	   $     501
Interest expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      6,897       (3,859	)    	     3,038
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         16,611       (5,707	)    	    10,904
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          7,875              6     	     7,881
Expenditures for segment assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                        14,999  —		   14,999

                2007
Interest income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       $  848  $ (405	)	 $    443
Interest expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      5,171  (2,017	)	 3,154
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         18,287  (6,014	)	 12,273
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          7,245  7		  7,252
Expenditures for segment assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       15,681  —		  15,681

                2006
Interest income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       $  394  $   (92	)	 $   302
Interest expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      3,126  (1,408	)	 1,718
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         12,455  (3,985	)	 8,470
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          5,865  1		  5,866
Expenditures for segment assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       8,385  —		  8,385

All adjustments represent intercompany eliminations and corporate amounts.

Geographic information about the Company is summarized as follows
(in thousands):		  2008	  2007	  2006 		  _________	  _________	  _________
Net sales
    United States. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      	 $ 148,421     $ 168,106     $148,502
    Italy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                              	  75,557	           65,449	      15,991
    Other countries. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    	 107,716        83,645        78,794 		  _________	  _________	  _________
    Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                              	 $331,694     $317,200     $243,287 		  _________	  _________	  _________ 		  _________	  _________	  _________	

 		  2008	  2007	   		  _________	  _________
Long-lived assets
    United States. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                      	  $  52,873      $  56,998 
    Belgium. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           	  77,331        63,753
    Italy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                              	  56,890	      47,252
    Other countries. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                    	 11,461        10,142
    Elimination of  intercompany assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 (89,622	)       (84,201	) 		  _________	  _________
    Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                              	 $108,933      $  93,944 		  _________	  _________ 		  _________	  _________

There were no customers that accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2008. One customer, Sewart Supply, Inc. 
(a distributor of Twin Disc), accounted for approximately 10% of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2007. There were no customers that 
accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2006. 

K. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
During fiscal 2005, the Company adopted the Twin Disc, Incorporated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the 
“Directors’ Plan”), a plan to grant non-employee directors options to purchase up to 144,000 shares of common stock, and the Twin 
Disc, Incorporated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan”), a plan under which officers and key employees may be 
granted options to purchase up to 656,000 shares of common stock as well as other equity-based awards. The Directors’ Plan grants 
non-employee directors who are elected or re-elected to the board, or who continue to serve on the board, options to purchase 1,200 
shares of common stock as of each annual meeting of shareholders. Such options carry an exercise price equal to the fair market value 
of the Company’s common stock as of the date of grant, vest immediately, and expire ten years after the date of grant. Options granted 
under the Stock Incentive Plan are determined to be non-qualified or incentive stock options as of the date of grant, and may carry a 
vesting schedule. For options under the Stock Incentive Plan that are intended to qualify as incentive stock options, if the optionee 
owns more than 10% of the total combined voting power of the Company’s stock, the price will not be less than 110% of the grant date 
fair market value and the options expire five years after the date of grant.

The Company has 26,400 non-qualified stock options outstanding as of June 30, 2008, under the Directors’ Plan.
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The Company has 31,400 incentive stock options and 141,600 non-qualified stock options outstanding at June 30, 2008, under the 
Twin Disc, Incorporated 1998 Incentive Compensation plan and the 1998 Stock Option Plan for Non-employee Directors. The 1998 
plans were terminated during 2004, except that options then outstanding will remain so until exercised or until they expire.

The Company has 4,400 incentive stock options and 2,400 non-qualified stock options outstanding at June 30, 2008, under the Twin 
Disc, Incorporated 1988 Incentive Stock Option plan and the 1988 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Officers, Key Employees and 
Directors. The 1988 plans were terminated during 1999, except that options then outstanding will remain so until exercised or until 
they expire.

Shares available for future options as of June 30 were as follows:	  2008 2007 	  ________ ________
2004 Stock Incentive Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                          381,008   418,318
2004 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                86,400   100,800

Stock option transactions under the plans during 2008 were as follows:

		   	Weighted	  Weighted Average  Aggregate
		   	  Average	  Remaining Contractual  Intrinsic
		   2008	  Price	  Life (Years)  Value		   ________	___________	  __________________________  ____________
Non-qualified stock options:
    Options outstanding at beginning of year. . . . .     199,600	  $ 5.15	   
    Granted. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    7,200	  27.55	   
    Canceled/Expired. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                            —	  — 	   
    Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                  (36,400	) 5.49	   		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________
    Options outstanding at June 30 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .               170,400	  $ 6.02	  4.51         $2,540,599		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________ 		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________
    Options exercisable at June 30. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                170,400	  $ 6.02	  4.51         $2,540,599		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________ 		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________
	 Options price range ($3.25 – $4.98)
        Number of shares. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          131,200
        Weighted average price. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   $  3.99
        Weighted average remaining life. . . . . . . . . . .           3.93 years

    Options price range ($5.73 – $7.19)
        Number of shares. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         18,800
        Weighted average price. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   $ 6.05
        Weighted average remaining life. . . . . . . . . . .          	 3.68 years

    Options price range ($10.11 – $27.55)
        Number of shares. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          20,400
        Weighted average price. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   $ 19.05
        Weighted average remaining life. . . . . . . . . . .          	 9.06 years

		   	Weighted	  Weighted Average  Aggregate
		   	  Average	  Remaining Contractual  Intrinsic
		   2008	  Price	  Life (Years)  Value		   ________	___________	  __________________________  ____________
Incentive stock options:
    Options outstanding at beginning of year. . . . .     48,800	  $ 4.77	   
    Granted. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    —	  —	   
    Canceled/Expired. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                            (3,200	) 7.19 	   
    Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                  (9,800	) 4.74	   		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________
    Options outstanding at June 30 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .              35,800	  $ 4.57	  2.91      $585,806		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________ 		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________
    Options exercisable at June 30. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                35,800	  $ 4.57	  2.91      $585,806		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________ 		   ________	  ________	  ________  ___________
	 Options price range ($3.76 – $4.98)
        Number of shares. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          31,400
        Weighted average price. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   $  4.30
        Weighted average remaining life. . . . . . . . . . .           3.17 years

    Options price range ($6.50 – $7.19)
        Number of shares. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         4,400
        Weighted average price. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                   $ 6.50
        Weighted average remaining life. . . . . . . . . . .          	 1 year
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In July 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment” (FAS 123R), using the modified prospective approach. In 
addition, the Company computed its windfall tax pool using the shortcut method. This statement requires the Company to expense the 
cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments using the fair-value-based method. All options were 
100% vested at the adoption of this statement. 

During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, 7,200, 7,200 and 7,200 stock options were granted, respectively. As a result, compensation cost 
of $74,000, $40,000 and $19,000 has been recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for 
fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended June 30, 2008, was approximately $811,000. 

Incentive options granted to greater than 10% shareholders are calculated using a 3-year term and an exercise price equal to 110%  
of the fair market value on the date of grant. There were no incentive options granted to a greater than 10% shareholder during the 
years presented.

In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company granted a target number of 52,758, 60,868 and 95,020 performance stock unit award 
grants, respectively, to various employees of the Company, including executive officers. The performance stock unit awards granted 
in fiscal 2008 will vest if the Company achieves a specified target objective relating to consolidated economic profit (as defined in the 
Performance Stock Unit Award Grant Agreement) in the cumulative three fiscal year period ending June 30, 2010. The performance 
stock unit awards granted in fiscal 2008 are subject to adjustment if the Company’s economic profit for the period falls below or 
exceeds the specified target objective, and the maximum number of performance stock units that can be awarded if the target objective 
is exceeded is 63,310. Based upon actual results to date, the Company is accruing the performance stock unit awards granted in fiscal 
2008 at the targeted payout level. The performance stock unit awards granted in fiscal 2007 will vest if the Company achieves a 
specified target objective relating to consolidated net operating profit after tax (“NOPAT”) in the cumulative three fiscal year period 
ending June 30, 2009. The performance stock unit awards granted in fiscal 2007 are subject to adjustment if the Company’s NOPAT 
for the period falls below or exceeds the specified target objective, and the maximum number of performance stock units that can be 
awarded if the target objective is exceeded is 73,042. Based upon actual results to date, the Company is accruing the performance stock 
unit awards granted in fiscal 2007 at the maximum payout level. The performance stock unit awards granted in fiscal 2006 will vest if 
the Company achieves a specified consolidated gross revenue objective in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008. If such objectives are 
met, the employees will receive a cash payment equal to the number of units multiplied by the fair-value of the Company’s common 
stock as of June 30, 2008. There were 125,800, 149,420 and 95,020 unvested stock unit awards outstanding at June 30, 2008, 2007 and 
2006, respectively. The weighted average grant date fair value of the unvested awards at June 30, 2008, was $22.79. The performance 
stock unit awards are remeasured at fair-value at the end of each reporting period. The fair-value of the stock unit awards are expensed 
over the performance period for the shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The compensation expense for the year ended June 
30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 related to the performance stock unit award grants, approximated $579,000, $2,328,000 and $312,000, 
respectively. At June 30, 2008, there was $1,268,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested shares, based upon the 
June 30, 2008 closing stock price of $20.93. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.60 years.

In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company granted a target number of 37,310, 60,882 and 133,400 performance stock awards, 
respectively, to various employees of the Company, including executive officers. The performance stock awards granted in fiscal 2008 
will vest if the Company achieves a specified target objective relating to consolidated economic profit (as defined in the Performance 
Stock Award Grant Agreement) in the cumulative three fiscal year period ending June 30, 2010. The performance stock awards granted 
in fiscal 2008 are subject to adjustment if the Company’s economic profit for the period falls below or exceeds the specified target 
objective, and the maximum number of performance shares that can be awarded if the target objective is exceeded is 44,772. Based 
upon actual results to date, the Company is accruing the performance stock awards granted in fiscal 2008 at the targeted payout 
level. The performance stock awards granted in fiscal 2007 will vest if the Company achieves a specified target objective relating to 
consolidated NOPAT in the cumulative three fiscal year period ending June 30, 2009. The performance stock awards granted in fiscal 
2007 are subject to adjustment if the Company’s NOPAT for the period falls below or exceeds the specified target objective, and the 
maximum number of performance shares that can be awarded if the target objective is exceeded is 73,058. Based upon actual results 
to date, the Company is accruing the performance stock awards granted in fiscal 2007 at the maximum payout level. The 2006 stock 
awards will vest if the Company achieves a specified consolidated gross revenue objective in the fiscal years ending June 30, 2008. 
There were 110,368, 181,248 and 257,300 unvested stock awards outstanding at June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The fair 
value of the stock awards (on the date of grant) is expensed over the performance period for the shares that are expected to ultimately 
vest. The compensation expense for the year ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, related to performance stock awards, approximated 
$1,005,000, $897,000 and $689,000, respectively.  The weighted average grant date fair value of the unvested awards at June 30, 2008, 
was $21.47. At June 30, 2008, there was $1,207,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested shares. This cost is 
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.67 years.

In addition to the performance shares mentioned above, the Company has unvested restricted stock outstanding that will vest if 
certain service conditions are fulfilled. The fair value of the restricted stock grants is recorded as compensation over the vesting 
period, which is generally 1 to 4 years. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company granted 7,200, 7,200 and 7,200 service 
based restricted shares, respectively, to employees and non-employee directors in each year. There were 20,000, 63,200 and 68,000 
unvested shares outstanding at June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Compensation expense of $154,000, $156,000 and 
$140,000 was recognized during the year ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to these service-based awards.  
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L. ENGINEERING AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Engineering and development costs include research and development expenses for new products, development and major 
improvements to existing products, and other charges for ongoing efforts to refine existing products. Research and development costs 
charged to operations totaled $2,788,000, $3,329,000 and $2,024,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Total engineering 
and development costs were $9,025,000, $9,327,000 and $8,070,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

M. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The Company has non-contributory, qualified defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all domestic employees hired prior 
to October 1, 2003, and certain foreign employees. Domestic plan benefits are based on years of service, and, for salaried employees, 
on average compensation for benefits earned prior to January 1, 1997, and on a cash balance plan for benefits earned after January 
1, 1997. The Company’s funding policy for the plans covering domestic employees is to contribute an actuarially determined amount 
which falls between the minimum and maximum amount that can be deducted for federal income tax purposes. Domestic plan assets 
consist principally of listed equity and fixed income securities.

In addition, the Company has unfunded, non-qualified retirement plans for certain management employees and directors. Benefits are 
based on final average compensation and vest upon retirement from the Company.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company provides healthcare and life insurance benefits for certain domestic retirees. 
All employees retiring after December 31, 1992, and electing to continue coverage through the Company’s group plan, are required to 
pay 100% of the premium cost. 

On September 29, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement 
Plans” (“SFAS No. 158”). SFAS No. 158 requires, among other things, the recognition of the funded status of each defined pension 
benefit plan, retiree healthcare and other postretirement benefit plans on the balance sheet. Each over-funded plan is recognized as 
an asset and each underfunded plan is recognized as a liability. The initial impact of the standard due to unrecognized prior service 
costs or credits and net actuarial gains or losses, as well as subsequent changes in the funded status, is recognized as a component of 
accumulated comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. Additional minimum pension liabilities and related intangible assets are 
also derecognized upon adoption of the new standard.  SFAS No. 158 requires initial application for fiscal years ending after December 
15, 2006, with earlier application encouraged. The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 as of June 30, 2007.

Obligations and Funded Status
The following table sets forth the Company’s defined benefit pension plans’ and other postretirement benefit plans’ funded status and 
the amounts recognized in the Company’s balance sheets and statement of operations as of June 30 (dollars in thousands):
 		   Other
 		  Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
 	  2008	  2007	  2008	 	 2007 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________
Change in benefit obligation:
    Benefit obligation, beginning of year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 $119,544	  $121,876	  $ 24,460		  $ 23,847
    Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       1,244       1,278         38    	     75
    Interest cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       6,943     7,029     1,367  	  1,335
    Amendments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      —	  (2	)  —		  — 
    Actuarial loss (gain) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                4,105     (885	)      —	   	  2,634
    Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      (9,302	) (9,752	)   (2,626	) 	  (3,431 )   	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________
    Benefit obligation, end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                      $122,534	  $119,544	  $ 23,239		  $ 24,460 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________ 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________

Change in plan assets:
    Fair value of assets, beginning of year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 $117,732	  $104,623	  $         —		  $         —
    Actual return on plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                         776    14,040	  —		  —
    Employer contribution. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              2,685     8,821     2,626   	   3,431
    Benefits paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      (9,302	)   (9,752	)    (2,626	)  	  (3,431 ) 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________
    Fair value of assets, end of year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                      $111,891	  $117,732	  $         —		  $         — 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________ 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________

Funded status . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       $(10,643	) $ (1,812	) $(23,239	)	 $(24,460 ) 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________ 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________
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 		   Other
 		  Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
 	  2008	  2007	  2008	 	 2007 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
    Prepaid benefit cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 $          —	  $   2,354	  $         —		  $           —
    Pension obligation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 (10,643	) (4,166	) —		  —
    Postretirement health and other obligations . . . . . . . . .         —	  —	  (23,239	)	 (24,460) 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________
Net amount recognized. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                               $(10,643	) $  (1,812	) $(23,239	)	 $(24,460 ) 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________ 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive  
income consist of (net of tax):
	 Net transition obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                          	  $       (96	)	 $       123	 	 $         —		  $           —	   
	 Prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	  (1,610	)	   (2,055	)	    (1,682	)	  (2,069	)    
	 Actuarial net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	 22,997		  16,394		      6,771	  	   7,400	 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________
Net amount recognized. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                               $   21,291		  $14,462		  $   5,089		  $      5,331			   _________		  _________		  _________		  _________ 	  _________	  _________	  _________		  _________

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income that are expected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit 
cost during the next fiscal year for the qualified domestic defined benefit plans are as follows (dollars in thousands):	

  	 Pension Benefits		  Other Postretirement Benefits  	 ___________________		  ____________________________________
    Actuarial loss. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                     	 $  3,161		      $1,211	  
    Prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	 (718	)	 (678	)  	 _________		  _________	
Net amount to be recognized. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 $2,443		       $ 533	    	 _________		  _________	  	 _________		  _________	

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $122,534,000 and $119,544,000 at June 30, 2008 and 
2007, respectively. 

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit
 obligation in excess of plan assets:	  June 30, 2008	 June 30, 2007 	  ________________	 ________________
    Projected and accumulated benefit obligation . . . . . . . .         $122,534 	 $7,612
    Fair value of plan assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                             111,891  	    3,447

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost			   		
	 Pension Benefits
 	  2008	  2007	  2006 	  ________	  ________	  ________
Service cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           $1,244         $1,278  	       $   1,171
Interest cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           6,943 	 7,029     6,974
Expected return on plan assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         (9,628	) (8,730	) (7,820 )
Amortization of prior service cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       (729	)       (766	)        96
Amortization of transition obligation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                    77        66        63
Amortization of net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                1,720     2,752     3,138 	  ________	  ________	  ________
Net periodic benefit cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                               $ (373	)         $1,629  	        $3,622 	  ________	  ________	  ________ 	  ________	  ________	  ________

 	 Postretirement Benefits
 	  2008	  2007	  2006 	  ________	  ________	  ________
Service cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           $     38          $     75  	        $     73
Interest cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                          1,367    1,335    1,406
Amortization of prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      (678	) (678	) (678 )
Amortization of net actuarial loss. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       1,210     889      1,022 	  ________	  ________	  ________
Net periodic benefit cost. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                               $1,937         $1,621  	       $1,823 	  ________	  ________	  ________ 	  ________	  ________	  ________ 	  
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Additional Information							     
	 Pension Benefits	 Other Postretirement Benefits
Assumptions (as of March 31)		  2008		  2007		  2006		  2008 		 2007 		 2006			   ________		  ________		  ________		  ________		  ________		 ________
Weighted average assumptions used to determine  
	 benefit obligations at June 30:
    Discount rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	 6.00%		  6.00%	 			   6.00%		  6.00%
    Expected return on plan assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 	 8.50%	 	 8.50%				    —		  —

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net  
	 periodic benefit cost for years ended June 30:
    Discount rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                 	  6.00%	 	 6.00%	 	 5 .75%	 	 6.00%		  6.00%		 5 .75%
    Expected return on plan assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 	 8.50%	 	 8.50%		  8.50%
    Rate of compensation increase. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                 	 5.00%	 	 5.00%		  5.00%

The assumed weighted-average healthcare cost trend rate was 8% in 2008, grading down to 6% in 2011. A 1% increase in the assumed 
healthcare cost trend would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $366,000 and the service 
and interest cost by approximately $23,000. A 1% decrease in the assumed healthcare cost trend would decrease the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $341,000 and the service and interest cost by approximately $22,000. 

Plan Assets
The Company’s pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at June 30, 2008 and 2007, by asset category are as follows:
		   Target  June 30
		   Allocation 2008 2007Asset Category	  ____________ ________ ________
	 Equity securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  70%           68%      73%
	 Debt securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                   20%           21%      18%
	 Real estate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       10% 11% 9%		   __________ ________ ________
		   100% 100% 100%		   __________ ________ ________		   __________ ________ ________

Due to market conditions and other factors, actual asset allocation may vary from the target allocation outlined above. The pension 
plans held 249,608 and 249,608 shares of Company stock with a fair market value of $5,224,295 (5.0 percent of total plan assets) and 
$8,974,656 (7.4 percent of total plan assets) at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Twin Disc employs a total return on investment approach whereby a mix of equities and fixed income investments are used to 
maximize long-term return of plan assets while avoiding excessive risk. Pension plan guidelines have been established based upon 
an evaluation of market conditions, tolerance for risk, and cash requirements for benefit payments. Investment risk is measured and 
monitored on an ongoing basis through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, and annual liability measurements.

The plans have a long-term return assumption of 8.50%. This rate was derived based upon historical experience and forward-looking 
return expectations for major asset class categories. 

Cash Flows
Contributions 
The Company expects to contribute $302,000 to its pension plans in fiscal 2009.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments 
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

 			        OTHER Postretirement Benefits
 		  Pension	  Gross		  Part D 	 Net Benefit
 		  Benefits	  Benefits		  Reimbursement 	 Payments 		  __________	  __________		  __________________ 	 _____________

2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         	 $10,377      $3,328 		    $  76 	  $3,252
2010. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         	 10,285       2,899 		      78 	   2,821
2011. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                          	 10,234	     2,808		       78 	   2,730
2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         	 9,539	     2,669		       78 	   2,591
2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                         	 13,514       2,466		       76 	   2,390
Years 2014–2018. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              	 45,631      9,487 		     345    	   9,142

The Company sponsors defined contribution plans covering substantially all domestic employees and certain foreign employees. 
These plans provide for employer contributions based primarily on employee participation. The total expense under the plans was 
$2,482,000, $1,896,000 and $1,745,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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N. INCOME TAXES
United States and foreign earnings before income taxes and minority interest were as follows
 (in thousands):	  2008		 2007	  2006 	  ________		 ________	  ________
    United States. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       $18,099 	 $23,144   $13,996
    Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                             17,149 	  11,185	    9,056 	  ________		 ________	  ________
 	  $35,248 	 $34,329   $23,052	   	  ________	  ________	  ________ 	  ________	  ________	  ________

The provision (credit) for income taxes is comprised of the following (in thousands):
 	  2008		 2007	  2006 	  ________		 ________	  ________
    Currently payable:
        Federal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                          $ 3,660	       	 $ 3,747	   $ 1,640
        State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            (333	)    	   1,080        278
        Foreign. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           5,334     	   7,487     3,794 	  ________		 ________	  ________
 	  8,661   	  12,314      5,712 	  ________		 ________	  ________
    Deferred:
        Federal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           2,233		 1,808	   2,001 
        State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            106	  	    100       532 
        Foreign. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                           (96	)   	  (1,949	)    225 	  ________		 ________	  ________
 	  2,243		 (41	)           2,758 	  ________		 ________	  ________
 	  $10,904		 $12,273	  $ 8,470	 	  ________	  ________	  ________ 	  ________	  ________	  ________

The components of the net deferred tax asset as of June 30 are summarized in the table below (in thousands):

Deferred tax assets:		  2008 2007 		  ________ ________
    Retirement plans and employee benefits. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                	 $16,010  $13,266
    Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                           	 — 438
    Inventory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                            	  2,482    3,029
    Reserves. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                             	 1,972    1,712
    Research and development capitalization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 782    1,053
    Foreign NOL carryforwards. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                            	 919    1,121
    Accruals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                             	  1,148           765 		  ________ ________
 		  23,313         21,384 		  ________ ________
Deferred tax liabilities:
    Property, plant and equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                         	 5,389          5,316
    Intangibles. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                           	 5,494    5,653
    Other liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                       	 400           413 		  ________ ________
 		   11,283         11,382 		  ________ ________
Total net deferred tax assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                              	  $12,030      $10,002 		  ________ ________ 		  ________ ________

Management believes that it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income and 
foreign source income to realize deferred tax assets. 

Following is a reconciliation of the applicable U.S. federal income taxes to the actual income taxes reflected in the statements of 
operations (in thousands):

 	  2008	  2007	  2006 	  ________	  ________	  ________
    U.S. federal income tax at 35% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                       $12,304          $ 11,944 	  $8,023
    Increases (reductions) in tax resulting from:
        Foreign tax items. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                 (200	)     672       398
        Italian tax rate change. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                             (1,040	)     —       —
        State taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       (147	)   767       563
        Valuation allowance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                               —	  —	  (270	)
        Change in prior year estimate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                      (164	) 102	  (365	)
        Research and development tax credits. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              (150	)  (1,235	) —
        Section 199 deduction. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                              (175	)  (73	) —
        ETI exclusion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                     —	   (149	) —
        Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                       476	  245	  121	 	  ________	  ________	  ________
 	  $10,904	  $12,273     $8,470 	  ________	  ________	  ________ 	  ________	  ________	  ________
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The Company has not provided additional U.S. income taxes on cumulative earnings of its Swiss subsidiary that are considered to 
be reinvested indefinitely. These earnings relate to ongoing operations and were approximately $3.5 million at June 30, 2008. Such 
earnings could become taxable upon the sale or liquidation of these foreign subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriation. The Company’s 
intent is for such earnings to be reinvested by the subsidiaries or to be repatriated only when it would be tax effective through the 
utilization of foreign tax credits. 

The Italian Finance Bill of 2008 was enacted on December 24, 2007, and resulted in a decrease of the combined State Tax and Regional 
Tax rates. The new tax rates are effective for the first fiscal year that begins after December 31, 2007. Deferred taxes were adjusted to 
reflect the impact of the tax rate changes, resulting in an approximately $1 million dollar reduction to the Company’s tax provision.

Annually, we file income tax returns in various taxing jurisdictions inside and outside the United States. In general, the tax years that 
remain subject to examination are 2003 through 2007 for our major operations in the U.S., Italy, Belgium and Japan. The U.S. Internal 
Revenue Service is currently auditing our consolidated income tax return for fiscal 2006. Other audits currently underway include those 
in Singapore and Italy. It is reasonably possible that at least one of these audit cycles will be completed during fiscal 2009.

The Company has approximately $0.8 million of unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2008, which, if recognized would impact the 
effective tax rate. The company does not anticipate that the net amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change significantly during the 
next twelve months. The Company’s policy is to accrue interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

Below is a reconciliation of beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

Unrecognized tax benefits upon adoption on June 30, 2007. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                             	  $ 325
Additions based on tax positions related to the prior year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                              	  434
Reductions based on tax positions related to the prior year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                             	 ( 66	) 	  		 ________
Unrecognized tax benefits on June 30, 2008. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                           	  $693 	  	  ________ 	  	  ________

The amounts reflected in this reconciliation do not include interest and penalties totaling $105,000.

O. CONTINGENCIES
The Company is involved in litigation of which the ultimate outcome and liability to the Company, if any, is not presently determinable. 
Management believes that final disposition of such litigation will not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or 
financial position.

P. RESTRUCTURING OF OPERATIONS
During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of $2,652,000 related to a workforce 
reduction at its Belgian operation that will allow for improved profitability through targeted outsourcing savings and additional 
focus on core manufacturing processes. The charge consists of prepension costs for 32 employees: 29 manufacturing employees and 
3 salaried employees. This charge was adjusted in the fourth quarter of 2008, resulting in a pre-tax benefit of $373,000, due to final 
negotiations primarily related to notice period pay. During fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company made cash payments of $103,000 and 
$0, respectively. Accrued restructuring costs were $2,603,000 and $2,652,000 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company recorded a restructuring charge of $2,076,000 in the fourth quarter of 2005 as the Company restructured its Belgian 
operation to improve future profitability. The charge consists of prepension costs for 37 employees: 33 manufacturing employees and  
4 salaried employees. During fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company made cash payments of $262,000 and $177,000, respectively. 
Accrued restructuring costs were $1,465,000 and $1,640,000 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Q. ACQUISITIONS
BCS Group Acquisition 
Effective May 31, 2006, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of four related foreign entities: B.C.S. S.r.l., an Italian 
limited liability company; B.C.S. Service S.r.l., an Italian limited liability company; Boat Equipment Limited, a Maltese limited liability 
company; and Vetus Italia S.r.l., an Italian limited liability company (collectively the “BCS Group”).  This acquisition was accounted for 
using the purchase method of accounting.  

The BCS Group has a fiscal year ended May 31. No results of operations for the BCS Group are included in the consolidated results 
for the year ended June 30, 2006, as the acquisition was effective with their fiscal year end of May 31, consistent with the Company’s 
consolidation principles (see Note A).  A full year of BCS Group activity is included in the consolidated results for the years ended June 
30, 2007 and 2008.

The purchase price, including acquisition costs, net of cash acquired was $20,330,000.

The condensed balance sheet of the BCS Group as of May 31, 2006, is as follows (in thousands):

    Current assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                        $  25,471
    Net fixed assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,136
    Other assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          315
    Intangibles. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                           10,971     	  ________
	 Total assets acquired	  $40,893   ________   ________

    Current liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     $ 13,783
    Deferred taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                        3,836
    Stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                  23,274     	  ________
	  	  $40,893   ________   ________

Intangible assets identified and the amounts assigned are as follows:

Intangible assets subject to amortization:
    Customer relationships. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                $  3,156
    Distribution network. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                  597
    Non-compete agreements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                             1,449     	  ________
	  	  $5,202   ________   ________
The weighted average amortization period is 10 years.

Intangible assets not subject to amortization:
    Trademark . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                           $ 1,875
    Goodwill. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                             3,894     	  ________
	  	  $5,769   ________   ________
Goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 

The following unaudited pro forma results of operations of the Company for fiscal 2006 are stated as though the transaction and 
related financing activities had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2006, in thousands.

Net sales 
	 As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 $243,287 
	 Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          	 269,460

Net earnings 
	 As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 $14,453 
	 Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          	 15,337

Basic earnings per share 
	 As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 $2.51 
	  Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          	 2.66

Diluted earnings per share 
	 As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 	 $2.43 
	 Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                          	 2.58

The unaudited pro forma financial information presented above is for informational purposes only and does not necessarily reflect the 
results of operations that would have occurred had the acquisition taken place on the date assumed above, and those results are not 
necessarily indicative of the results of future combined operations.
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�TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE II – VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands)
		  Additions
	 Balance at	 Charged to			   Balance at
	 Beginning	 Costs and		  Net	 End of
Description	 of Period	 Expenses	 Acquired	 Deductions1	 of Period

2008:
Allowance for losses on accounts receivable . . . . . . .        $	 922 $ 391	 $	 —	 $ 94	 $	1,219
Reserve for inventory obsolescence. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                $	 4,560 $ 1,147	 $	 —	 $ 1,396	 $	4,311

2007:
Allowance for losses on accounts receivable . . . . . . .        $	 1,023 $ 123	 $	 —	 $ 224	 $	 922
Reserve for inventory obsolescence. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                $	 5,953 $ 2,342	 $	 —	 $3,735 	 $4,560

2006:
Allowance for losses on accounts receivable . . . . . . .        $	 927 $ 126	 $	140	 $ 170	 $	1,023
Reserve for inventory obsolescence. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                $	 4,510 $ 1,753	 $	960	 $ 1,270	 $	5,953

1  �Accounts receivable written-off and inventory disposed of during the year and other adjustments (primarily foreign currency translation adjustments).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report 
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

  TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED

  By /s/ MICHAEL E. BATTEN
 September 12, 2008  Michael E. Batten
   Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

  By /s/ MICHAEL E. BATTEN
 September 12, 2008  Michael E. Batten, Chairman, 
   Chief Executive Officer and Director

 
  By /s/ JOHN H. BATTEN
 September 12, 2008  John H. Batten, 
   President, Chief Operating Officer and Director

  By /s/ CHRISTOPHER J. EPERJESY
 September 12, 2008  Christopher J. Eperjesy, Vice President –
   Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

  By /s/ Jeffrey S. Knutson
 September 12, 2008  Jeffrey S. Knutson, Corporate Controller
   (Chief Accounting Officer)

   John A. Mellowes, Director
   Malcolm F. Moore, Director
 September 12, 2008  David B. Rayburn, Director
   Harold M. Stratton II, Director
   David L. Swift, Director
   David R. Zimmer, Director
 
 
  By /s/ THOMAS E. VALENTYN
   Thomas E. Valentyn, 
   Attorney In Fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX
TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED

10-K for Year Ended June 30, 2008		
Included

 

Exhibit		  Description	 Herewith

	 3a)	� Articles of Incorporation, as restated December 10, 2007, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of  
the Company’s Form 8-K dated December 6, 2007). File No. 001-07635.

	 b)	� Corporate Bylaws, as amended through September 6, 2006, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of  
the Company’s Form 8-K dated September 11, 2006). File No. 001-07635.

	 4)	� Description of Shareholder Rights Plan and Form of Rights Agreement dated as of December 20, 2007,  
by and between the Company and Mellon Investor Services, LLC, as Rights Agent, with Form of Rights  
Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Item 3.03 and Exhibit 4 of the Company’s Form 8-K dated  
December 20, 2007). File No. 001-07635.

Material Contracts

	 10a)	� The 1988 Incentive Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) of the Company’s  
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004). File No. 001-07635.

	 b)	� The 1988 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for Officers, Key Employees and Directors (Incorporated by  
reference to Exhibit 10(b) of the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004).  
File No. 001-07635.

	 c)	� Amendment to 1988 Incentive Stock Option Plan of Twin Disc, Incorporated (Incorporated by reference  
to Exhibit 10(c) of the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004). File No. 001-07635.

	 d)	�� Amendment to 1988 Non-Qualified Incentive Stock Option Plan for Officers, Key Employees and  
Directors of Twin Disc, Incorporated (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) of the Company’s Form  
10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004). File No. 001-07635.

	 e)	� Director Tenure and Retirement Policy (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) of the Company’s  
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004). File No. 001-07635.

	 f)	� The 1998 Incentive Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of the Proxy Statement  
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on October 16, 1998). File No. 001-07635.

	 g)	� The 1998 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B of the  
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on October 16, 1998). File No. 001-07635.

	 h)	� The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B of the Proxy Statement  
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on October 20, 2006). File No. 001-07635.

	 i)	� The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors as amended (Incorporated by reference to  
Exhibit 99 of the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007). File No. 001-07635.

	 j)	� Form of Performance Stock Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the  
Company’s Form 8-K dated August 2, 2005). File No. 001-07635.

	 k)	� Form of Performance Stock Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the  
Company’s Form 8-K dated July 31, 2006). File No. 001-07635.

	 l)	� Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the  
Company’s Form 8-K dated July 31, 2006). File No. 001-07635.

	 m)	�� Form of Performance Stock Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the  
Company’s Form 8-K dated August 2, 2007). File No. 001-07635.

	 n)	� Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the  
Company’s Form 8-K dated August 2, 2007). File No. 001-07635.

	 o)	�� Form of Performance Stock Award Grant Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the  
Company’s Form 8-K dated July 30, 2008). File No. 001-07635.

	 p)	� Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Grant Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of  
the Company’s Form 8-K dated July 30, 2008). File No. 001-07635.
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	EXHIBIT INDEX 
TWIN DISC, INCORPORATED

10-K for Year Ended June 30, 2008		
Included

 

Exhibit		  Description	 Herewith

	 q)	� Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the  
Company’s Form 8-K dated July 30, 2008). File No. 001-07635.

	 r)	� Supplemental Retirement Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Form  
8-K dated July 30, 2008). File No. 001-07635.

	 s)	  �Forms of Change in Control Severance Agreements (Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.3, 10.4  
and 10.5 of the Company’s Form 8-K dated August 2, 2007). File No. 001-07635.

	 t)	  �Form of Indemnity Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Form 8-K  
dated August 2, 2005). File No. 001-07635.

	 u)	� 6.05% Senior Notes (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K dated  
April 12, 2006).  File No. 001-07635.

	 v)	� Amendment 1 to 6.05% Senior Notes.

	 w)	  �Amendment 2 to 6.05% Senior Notes.

	 21	 Subsidiaries of the Registrant		  X

	 23	 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	 X

	 24	 Power of Attorney		  X

	  31a	 Certification 		  X

	 31b	 Certification 		  X

	  32a	 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350	 X

	 32b	 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350	 X
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Twin Disc, Incorporated, the registrant (a Wisconsin Corporation) owns directly or indirectly 100% of the following subsidiaries:

   1.	 Twin Disc International, S.A. (a Belgian corporation)
   2.	 Twin Disc Srl (an Italian corporation)
   3.	 Rolla SP Propellers SA (a Swiss corporation)
   4.	 Twin Disc (Pacific) Pty. Ltd. (an Australian corporation)
   5.	 Twin Disc (Far East) Ltd. (a Delaware corporation operating in Singapore and Hong Kong)
   6.	 Mill Log Equipment Co., Inc. (an Oregon corporation)
   7.	 Mill Log Wilson Equipment Ltd. (a Canadian corporation)
   8.	 Twin Disc Southeast, Inc. (a Florida corporation)
   9.	 Vetus Italia Srl (an Italian corporation) 
   10.	 Technodrive SARL (a French corporation) 
   11.	 Boat Equipment Limited (a Maltese limited liability corporation) 
   12.	 Twin Disc Japan (a Japanese corporation)

Twin Disc, Incorporated also owns 66% of Twin Disc Nico Co. LTD. (a Japanese corporation)

The registrant has no parent nor any other subsidiaries. All of the above subsidiaries are included in the consolidated  
financial statements.

EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-99229, 333-119770, 
333-119771, 333-69631 and 333-69015) of Twin Disc, Incorporated of our report dated September 12, 2008, relating to the financial 
statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in  
this Form 10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
September 12, 2008
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EXHIBIT 24

 POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned directors of Twin Disc, Incorporated hereby severally constitute Michael E. Batten and Thomas E. Valentyn, and each 
of them singly, true and lawful attorneys with full power to them, and each of them, singly, to sign for us and in our names as directors 
the Form 10-K Annual Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, and generally do all such things in our names and behalf as directors to enable Twin Disc, Incorporated to comply with the 
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and all requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby 
ratifying and confirming our signatures so they may be signed by our attorneys, or either of them, as set forth below.

	 /s/ JOHN A. MELLOWES	 /s/ HAROLD M. STRATTON II
	 John A. Mellowes, Director	 Harold M. Stratton II, Director

 July 25, 2008	 /s/ MALCOLM F. MOORE	 /s/DAVID L. SWIFT
	 Malcolm F. Moore, Director 	 David L. Swift, Director

 	 /s/ DAVID B. RAYBURN	 /s/ DAVID R. ZIMMER
	 David B. Rayburn, Director 	 David R. Zimmer, Director
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EXHIBIT 31a

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Michael E. Batten, certify that:

1.	� I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Twin Disc, Incorporated;

2.	� Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact  
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.	� Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all  
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented 
in this report;

4.	� The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

	� a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our  
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

	 �b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of  
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

	� c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual 
report based on such evaluation; and

	� d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the  
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of this annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.	� The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the  
equivalent functions):

	� a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

	� b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 12, 2008 	 /s/ MICHAEL E. BATTEN
 	 Michael E. Batten
	 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31b

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Christopher J. Eperjesy, certify that:

1.	 I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Twin Disc, Incorporated;

2.	� Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact  
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.	� The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

4.	� The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

	� a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

	� b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of  
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

	� c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual 
report based on such evaluation; and

	� d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of this annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.	� The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):

	� a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

	� b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 12, 2008	 /s/ CHRISTOPHER J. EPERJESY
	 Christopher J. Eperjesy
	 Vice President – Finance,  
	 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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EXHIBIT 32a

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Twin Disc, Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as of the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael E. Batten, Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and 

(2) �the information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of 
the Company.

Date: September 12, 2008	 /s/ MICHAEL E. BATTEN
	 Michael E. Batten
	 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 32b

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Twin Disc, Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as of the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Christopher J. Eperjesy, Vice 
President – Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and 

(2) �the information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of  
the Company.

Date: September 12, 2008	 /s/ CHRISTOPHER J. EPERJESY
	 Christopher J. Eperjesy
	 Vice President – Finance,  
	 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Directors
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John H. Batten
President and Chief Operating Officer
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Mequon, Wisconsin

Malcolm F. Moore
President and Chief Operating Officer
Gehl Company
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West Bend, Wisconsin

David B. Rayburn
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer
Modine Manufacturing Company
(Manufacturer of Heat Exchange Equipment)
Racine, Wisconsin

HArold M. Stratton II
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer,
Strattec Security Corporation
(A manufacturer of mechanical locks, 

electromechanical locks and related security 
access control products)

Milwaukee, Wisconsin

David L. Swift
Retired Chairman, President – Chief Executive Officer
Acme-Cleveland Corporation
(Manufacturer of Diversified Industrial Products)
Pepper Pike, Ohio

David R. Zimmer
Managing Partner
Stonebridge Equity, LLC
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value consulting firm)
Troy, Michigan

Michael E. Batten
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

John H. Batten
President and Chief Operating Officer

Christopher J. Eperjesy
Vice President – Finance, Chief Financial Officer 
and Treasurer

James E. Feiertag
Executive Vice President

Dean J. Bratel
Vice President – Engineering

Henri-Claude Fabry
Vice President – Global Distribution

Denise L. Wilcox
Vice President – Human Resources

Thomas E. Valentyn
General Counsel and Secretary

Jeffrey S. Knutson
Corporate Controller
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	 (In thousands of dollars, except where noted) 2008	  2007  2006 	 2005  2004	

Statement of Operations And comprehensive income

Net sales $331,694	  $317,200  $243,287 	 $218,472  $186,089	

Costs and expenses, including marketing, 

    engineering and administrative 292,802	  280,210  218,503 	 207,794  174,972	

Earnings from operations 38,892	  36,990  24,784 	 10,678  11,117

Other expense (3,644	) (2,661 ) (1,732 )	 (1,186 ) (485	) 

Earnings before income taxes and  

    minority interest 35,248	  34,329  23,052 	 9,492  10,632 

Income taxes 10,904	  12,273  8,470 	 2,485  4,964

Minority interest (92	) (204 ) (129 )	 (97 ) (25	)

Net earnings 24,252	  21,852  14,453 	 6,910  5,643	  

Balance Sheet

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 14,447	  19,508  16,427 	 11,614  9,127	

Receivables, net 67,611	  63,277  55,963 	 37,751  37,091 

Inventories, net 97,691	  76,253  65,081 	 48,481  48,777	

Other current assets 15,946	  14,202  13,660 	 11,679  7,270	

Total current assets 195,695	  173,240  151,131 	 109,525  102,265	

Investments and other assets 41,078	  37,134  38,083 	 38,181  39,135	

Fixed assets less accumulated depreciation 67,855	  56,810  46,958 	 40,331  33,222	

Total assets 304,628	  267,184  236,172 	 188,037  174,622	

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities 89,588	  79,918  79,621 	 65,909  56,604	

Long-term debt 48,227	  42,152  38,369 	 14,958  16,813	

Deferred liabilities 36,488	  29,032  28,377 	 39,680  41,980	

Minority interest 679	  645  572 	 591  509	

Shareholders’ equity 129,646	  115,437  89,233 	 66,899  58,716	

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 304,628	  267,184  236,172 	 188,037  174,622	

Comparative Financial Information

Per share statistics:

Basic earnings 2.15	  1.88  1.26 	 0.60  0.50

Diluted earnings 2.13	  1.84  1.22 	 0.59  0.50

Dividends 0.2650	  0.205  0.1825 	 0.175  0.175	

Shareholders’ equity 11.49	  9.93  7.74 	 5.85  5.22	

Return on equity 18.7%	  18.9%  16.2% 	 10.3 % 9.6	%

Return on assets 8.0%	  8.2%  6.1% 	 3.7 % 3.2	%

Return on sales 7.3%	  6.9%  5.9% 	 3.2 % 3.0	%

Average shares outstanding 11,278,885	  11,622,620  11,533,276 	 11,442,168  11,256,788	

Diluted shares outstanding 11,411,927	  11,880,432  11,881,208 	 11,631,592  11,373,496	  

Number of shareholder accounts 756	  778  804 	 888  917	

Number of employees 1,019	  1,011  962 	 901  860	

Additions to plant and equipment 14,999	  15,681  8,385 	 12,009  4,180	

Depreciation 6,921	  6,331  5,529 	 5,108  5,226	  

Net working capital 106,107	  93,322  71,510 	 43,616  45,661	

5-Year Financial summary
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Corporate Data

Annual Meeting
Twin Disc Corporate Offices
Racine, Wisconsin
2:00 P.M.
October 17, 2008

Shares Traded
NASDAQ: Symbol TWIN

Annual Report on Securities and  
Exchange Commission Form 10-K
Single copies of the Company’s 2008  
Annual Report on Securities and Exchange  
Commission Form 10-K, including exhibits, will  
be provided without charge to shareholders 
after September 12, 2008, upon written request 
directed to Secretary, Twin Disc, Incorporated,  
1328 Racine Street, Racine, Wisconsin 53403.

Transfer Agent & Registrar
BNY Mellon Shareowner Services 
	 480 Washington Boulevard
    Jersey City, New Jersey 07310 
	 Toll Free: 800-839-2614 
	 Web: www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd

Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
    Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Corporate Offices
Twin Disc, Incorporated
    Racine, Wisconsin 53403
    Telephone: (262) 638-4000

Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries
Twin Disc International S.A.
    Nivelles, Belgium
Twin Disc Srl
    Decima, Italy
Technodrive SARL
    Chambery, France
Twin Disc (Pacific) Pty. Ltd.
    Brisbane, Queensland, Australia
Twin Disc (Far East) Ltd.
    Singapore
Mill Log Equipment Co., Inc.
    Coburg, Oregon
Mill Log Wilson Equipment Ltd.
    Burnaby, British Columbia

Twin Disc Southeast, Inc.
    Jacksonville, Florida
Rolla SP Propellers SA
    Novazzano, Switzerland
Boat Equipment Limited
	 Valletta, Malta
Twin Disc Japan
	 Saitama, Japan

Partially Owned Subsidiaries
Twin Disc Nico Co. Ltd.

Manufacturing Facilities
Racine, Wisconsin
Nivelles, Belgium
Decima, Italy
Novazzano, Switzerland
Limite sull’Arno, Italy 

Sales Offices
Domestic
Racine, Wisconsin
Coburg, Oregon
Kent, Washington
Medley, Florida
Jacksonville, Florida
Foreign
Nivelles, Belgium
Brisbane and Perth, Australia
Singapore
Decima, Italy
Limite sull’Arno, Italy 
Novazzano, Switzerland
Chambery, France
Edmonton, Canada
Burnaby, Canada
Saitama, Japan
Shanghai, China
Guangzhou, China

Manufacturing Licenses
Hitachi-Nico Transmission Co., Ltd.
	 Tokyo, Japan
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